
 

 

 
VILLAGE OF GLENWOOD 
Regular Council Meeting 

Agenda 
Glenwood Community Hall (90 Main Avenue) 

Thursday, December 10, 2020 at 7:00pm 
 

 

Page 1 of 2 

To access the supporting documents to this agenda, first download the agenda to your own 
computer/device, then look for them as attachments to the .pdf agenda document. 

 
1. Call to Order 

 
2. Prayer 

 
3. Adoption of Agenda 

 
4. Adoption of Previous Minutes: 

a) 2020.11.12 Regular Council Meeting Minutes 
 

5. Delegations:  
a) Wayne Smith & Brenda MacMillan – Village Reserves & Strategic Action Plans 
b) Brenda MacMillan – Welcome packages for new comers into the area 

 
6. Items for Discussion and/or Action: 

a) 2021 Budget approval - Hakon 
b) Appoint 2021 Returning Officer – Carrie Kinahan   

 
7. Councillor Reports: 

• Mayor Elias 
• Deputy Mayor Rolfson 
• Councillor Carter 
• Councillor Lybbert 
• Councillor Clark 

 
8. CAO Report: 

a) Trainings 
b) Office closures 
c) Projects completed and in future 
d) Village update 
e) Election Packages will be available at office  
f) Tax Recovery  
g) Black Ink News 
h) Development officer 

 
 

9. Financial Reports: 
a) Accounts Payable Cheques for November 2020 (20190976-20191015) 
b) Budget vs Actual Review November 2020 
c) Bank Reconciliation for October & November 



Page 2 of 2 

10. Correspondence: 
a) 10 a. 2020-10-08 Executive Committee Meeting Minutes ORRSC 
b) 10 b. 2020 Alberta SW Board Minutes 11-04 approved 
c) 10 c. 2020-12 Bulletin Alberta SW 
d) 10 d. 2020-12 Bulletin Alberta SW M R 
e) 10 e. 2021 notes for new letters RBL-Succession Planning 
f) 10 f. Cover letter 2021 Glenwood RBL 
g) 10 g. M&R Agenda, December 4,2020 
h) 10 h. Mayors and Reeves November 2020 (1) 
i) 10 i. Mayors and Reeves November 2020 
j) 10 j. OWC Update to Mayors + Reeves December 2020 
k) 10 k. November 6, 2020 Minutes Mayor & Reeves 
l) 10 l. Ltr to Premier Kenney-Support for integrated Fire and EMS Dispatch_2020-12-01 
m) 10 m. Agri-food Futures Scholarship 2020 
n) 10 m. Agri-food Futures Scholarship 2020 
o) 10 o. Municipality Q&A - November 25 
p) 10 p. Municipal Gov't-FAQ-Nov 27 
q) 10 q. Municipal-Guidance-FAQ-Dec 4 
r) 10 r. Emergency management MINUTES Dec 3, 2020 
s) 10 s. Emergency Dispatch Thank you letter 
t) 10 t. 2020-11-12 Executive Committee Meeting Minutes ORRSC 

 
 

11. Closed Meeting: 
a) Land, Legal or Labour Matters As per Section 24(b)(i) of the FOIP Act     

 
12. Adjournment: 

 
 





OLDMAN RIVER REG\)NAL,SrnvlcEs CoMMrssroN


EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES


october 8, 2020; 6:00 pm


ORRSC Conference Room (3105 - 16 Avenue North, Lethbridge)


The Executive Committee MeetinB of the Oldman River Regional Servlces Commission was held on
Thursday, October 8, 2020, at 6:00 pm, in the Conference Room of the ORRSC Administration Building.


Executive Committee:
Gordon Wolstenholme, Chairman
Jim Bester, Vice Chair
Don Anderberg
Jennifer Crowson
Doug MacPherson
Margaret Plumtree
lan Sundquist


Staff:


Chairman Wolstenholme called the meeting to order, the time being 6:07 pm


1. Approval of Agenda


Moved by: lan Sundquist


3. Business Arising from the Minutes


None


Lenze Kuiper, Director
Ta ra Cryderman, Executive Assistant


CARRIEO


CARRIED


THAT the Executive Committee approve the october 8, 2020 Executive committee Meeting
Agenda, as presented.


2. Approval of Minutes


Moved by: Jennifer Crowson


THAT the Executive Committee approve the August 13, 2020 Executive Committee Meeting
Minutes, as presented.


2020 ORRSC Executive Committee Meeting Minutes -page 2G


Attendance:







4 New Business


a Staff Update


The Executive Committee was reminded of the retirement of Barb Johnson and was
informed of the hiring of Tara Cryderman for the position of Executive Assistant.


The Committee was also reminded of the resignations of Erin Graham and Bonnie
Andres from July. These two positions will not be filled at this time.


b. Draft 2021 Budget


The Draft 2021 Budget, the 2021 Membership Fees Review and the 2021 GtS Fees
Review were presented for first review and initia I discussions.


The following provides a synopsis of the discussion


The approval fees revenue was discussed. The revenue is projected to be 5300,000
in 202L. This was felt to be too high.
ACTION:After discussion, consensus of the Committee was to budse t the Approval
Fees Reven ue at S250,000
There was no increase to membership fees budgeted for 2021
ACTION: After discussion. consensus of the Committee was to increase membership
fe e5 L%


Computer Software expenses are double what was budBeted for 2020. This is due to
the number of subscriptions necessary, mainly for GIS Services. The GIS Fees for
2021was budgeted with no increase to fees.
ACTION: After discussion. consensus of the Committee is to oass this increase onto
our clients and to increase the fees acco rd inslv.
Fleet replacement was discussed.
It was budgeted to replace a vehicle in 202i.
ACTION: After discussion. consensus of the Committee was to delav Durchase of a
new fleet veh icle until 2022.
ACTION: Co m Pare the costs assoc iated with ownins a nd ma inta inine a fleet
inve ntorv versu s paving mileas e for travel.
Another suggestions was to review computer software. perhaps there are cost
saving alternatives available, such as Google Docs instead of Microsoft.
Equipment items, such as a new Air Conditioning Unit and new computer systems
were budgeted in 2021. These items were included as an ,,in case,, instance. The
actual replacement schedule is undetermined.
ACTION: After discussion. con sensus of the Comm ittee was to remove these items
from the 2021 budset. and should th ere be a need to replace these items in 2021,
that thev be purchased usine funds from the Reserve account. The
has been established for this rea 50n


2020 ORRSC Executive Committee Meeting Minutes -page 27


reserve account


The potential retirement date for Senior Planner Mike Burla was also mentioned. Mr.
Burla has informed the Director of his intentions to retire in 2021.







The Reserve Account was discussed
ACTION: After discussion. the c nsensu s of the Committee was to not allocate fundso


to the reserve account for 2021
Postage was discussed, with relation to mailing out Agenda Packages to the Board of
Directors and the Executive Committee.
ACTION: After discussion, the consensus of the Committee is to discontinue mailine
a hard copv of the Aeenda Packaee to the Executive Committ ee but rather, email
the oackaee and orovi de a hard copv the nisht of the meetins
ACTION: Add discussion on postase and the mailins of Aeenda Packa ges to the next


c


oard of Directors Meetin


Strategic Plan Review


The Strategic Plan 2016 - 2026 was reviewed.


Member Services


Objective #1 - Add New Member Services


- A Regional SDAB has been established


- Drone lmagery is now offered


- There is a possibility to increase services, and revenue, by renting out office
space to organizations within the area.
ACTION :After discussion, it was suEgested tha Southcrow be contacted tot


Objective #2 - Add New Planning Members


- The VillaBe of Duchess has joined


- The Town of Bow lsland has been in discussions regarding membership


Objective #3 - Add New GIS Members


- The Village of Duchess and the City of Brooks are now utilizing this service


- Will continue to seek out additional municipalities


Objective #4 - Strengthen Member Relationships


- The Bylaw requires amendment. This will provide an opportunity to update
membership agreements and power of attorney agreements.


Object #5 - Secure Date & Provide Modern Access to lnformation and Data


- Continue to digitalize files


2020 ORRSC Executive Committee Meeting Minutes -Page 28


investigate the possibilitv of utilizing office sDace.







d


Fiscal Sustainability
Objective #1 - Review and Define the Business Model Ensuring ORRSC Maintains Fiscal
Sustainability


- Annual review and adoption of the budget


Objective #2 - Communicate the Value of ORRSC to Member Municipalities


- Continue to communicate the value of ORRSC to members


Objective #3 - Secure Provincial Funding


- Due to the current government, this objective is highly unlikely to be met
- Grant Funding will require municipal advocacy


Administrative Leadership
Objective #1 - Ensure Staff have Proper Work Environment and Resources to meet
Member Obligations


- Ongoing Policy Manual Update


- Salary Review and Comparisons Review ongoing


- Risk Management Annual update


Governance
Objective #1 - Ensure our Board and Executive remain Effective and Relevant


- Solid understating of roles by Directors and Executive Members
- ORRSC Bylaws will be updated in 2021


Subdivision Activity 2020


The subdivision activities forAugust and September ZO2O were reviewed. Subdivision
fees are still almost $34,000 less than this time last year.


Fee For Service - Current Projects


The current projects were reviewed.


Estimated costing vs actual costing was discussed.


e


2020 ORRSC Executive Committee Meeting Minutes -page 29


Survey Summary
The last survey dates back to 2016.


- ACTION: Perform another Member Survev.







5 Accounts


a Office Accounts
i. July 2020


Office Accounts - ruly 2020


Account
Number


5150


5280


5320


5285


5310


5310


5310


5320


5380


5320


5380


5380


5380


5430


5440


5490


5500


5570


5570


5570


5570


1160


Amount


s96.oo


s47s.o0


s24.34


ss0-00


ss90.84


s180.90


5180.90


ss7.48


5143.98


5129.44


s301.76


ss8.99


s23.00


s100.00


5180.00


53s9.00


s360.40


s68e.38


s720.00


sL,262.8O


sl,262.8O


s322.46


Account


Staff Mileage


Janitorial Services


General Office Supplies


Building Maintenance


Telephon e


Telephone


Telephone


General Office Supplies


Printing and Printing Supplies


General Office Supplies


Printing and Printing Supplies


Printing and Printing Supplies


Printing and Printing Supplies


Aerial Photos and Maps


Land Titles offlce


Consultants


Subdivision Notifications


Equipment Repairs and Maintenance


Equipment Repairs and Maintenance


Equipment Repairs and Maintenance


Equipment Repairs and Maintenance


GST Receivable


i. August 2020


Office Accounts - August 2020


Reference


Diane Horvath


Madison Ave Business Services


Madison Ave Business Services


lsaac Witkowski


Bell Mobility


Shaw Cablesystems


Shaw Cablesystems


Total Office Plus


Total Office Plus


Desjardin Credit Services


Desjardin Credit Services


Total Office Plus


Lethbridge Mobile Shredding


MD of Willow Creek


Minister of Finance


Brown Okamura & Associates


Lethbridge Herald


Xerox


Digitex


whipcord


whipcord


GST Receivable


Total 57,s59.47


Account
Number


5150


5280


s320


5320


Account


Staff Mileage


lanitorial Services


General Office Supplies


General Office Supplies


Reference


Gavin Scott


Madison Ave Business Services


Madison Ave Business Services


Carboncraphics


Amount


5s3.so


542s.00


s38.so


s29.71


2020 ORRSC Executive Committee Meeting Minutes -Page 30







5320


5380


5330


5380


5440


5500


5570


5570


55 70


1160


General Office Supplies


Printing and Printing Supplies


Dues and Subscriptions


Printing and Printing Supplies


Land Titles Office


Subdivision Notification


Equipment Repairs and Maintenance


Equipment Repairs and Maintenance


Equipment Repairs and Maintenance


GST Receivable


Desjardin credit services


Desjardin Credit Services


Taber Times


Lethbridge Mobile Shredding


Minister of Finance


Lethbridge Herald


Xerox


Digitex


Whipcord


GST Receivable


s88.96


s4s.49


s46.oo


s43.oo


5227.OO


5190.40


s1,083.96


s720.00


s1,262.80


s198.20


s4,452.52


6


Total


Moved by: Margaret Plumtree


THAT the Executive Committee approve the Office Accounts for J uly 2020 (57,569.47) and
August 2020 (S4,452.52), pending clarification regarding the double payment to Whipcord in the
month of July for the amount of S1,262.80.


CARRIED


b. Financial Statements


Moved by: Don Anderberg


THAT the Executive Committee approve the January 1 - July 31, 2020 and January 1-
August 31,2020 unaudited Financial statements, as presented.


CARRIED


Directo/s Report


The Director provided an update on his activities since the last Executive Committee Meeting


Executive Report


Members of the Executive Committee provided updates on their activities, and information
reBarding their M unicipalities.


8. ln Camera


Moved by: Doug MacPherson


THAT the Executive Committee move ln-Camera, the time being 7:56 pm, pursuant to provlsions
of the Freedom of lnformotion ond Protection of privocy Act.


CARRIED


2020 ORRSC Executive Committee Meeting Minutes -Page 31


7.







10.


9. Moved by: Doug MacPherson


THAT the Executive Committee move out of ln-Camera, the time being 8:04 pm.


CARRIED
Adjournment


Following all discussions, Chair Gordon Wolstenholme adjourned the meeting, the time being
8:05 pm.


2020 ORRSC Executive Committee Meeting Minutes -Page 32


/4^ T/W








 1 


Alberta SouthWest Regional Alliance 
Minutes of the Board of Directors Meeting 


Wednesday November 4, 2020 - Town Council Chambers - Fort Macleod 
 


 Board Representatives 


Jim Bester, Cardston County 


Brent Feyter, Fort Macleod 


Scott Korbett, Pincher Creek 


Blair Painter, Crowsnest Pass 


Dale Gugala, Stavely 


Jennifer Handley, Nanton (alt) 


 


Dennis Barnes, Cardston 


John Van Driesten, MD Willow Creek 


 


Resource Staff and Guests 


Linda Erickson, Jobs, Economy, and Innovation 


Lori Hodges, LRSD 


Bev Thornton, AlbertaSW  


 


1.  Call to Order and Welcome Vice-Chair, Jim Bester, called the meeting to order. 


2.  Approval of Agenda Moved by Blair Painter THAT the agenda be approved with 


addition to Item #8. 


Carried. [2020-11-706] 


 


3.  Approval of Minutes  


 


Moved by Dennis Barnes THAT the minutes of October 7, 2020 be 


approved as presented. 


Carried. [2020-11-707] 


 


4.  Approval of Cheque Register Moved by Dale Gugala THAT cheques #2853 to #2862 be approved 


as presented. 


Carried. [2020-11-708] 


 


5.  New funding for EV infrastructure SouthGrow is considering applying to be an “administrator” for 


Natural Resources Canada Zero Emission Vehicle Infrastructure 


Program if there is sufficient interest from our regional 


ccommunities and businesses. The program provides 50% matching 


dollars to install additional charging stations. 


Moved by Scott Korbett THAT we notify CAOs and Chambers for 


expressions of interest. 


Carried. [2020-11-709] 


 


6.  New ideas for waste management  Further to presentations at the Alberta Consolidated Action for 


Recycling Enterprise (CARE) Conference in September, there is 


interest in being up to date on potential options to landfill. 


Moved by John Van Driesten THAT we arrange for presentations at 


upcoming meetings. 


Carried. [2020-11-710] 


 


7.  Regional Marketing 2021 AlbertaSW is featured on the Top 100 Good Travel Guide website. 


AlbertaSW will retain ad space in Vacation Country Travel Guide. 


Peaks to Prairies promotional campaign is in development. 


Myalbertasouthwest.com will have updated list of regional events. 


Moved by Brent Feyter THAT AlbertaSW once again place regional 


display ad on the back cover of the Waterton Guide. 


Carried. [2020-11-711] 


 


 







 2 


8.  Continuity and Communication; 


resources to support regional 


collaboration 


 


Board reviewed a summary of community contributions and 


projects since 2003, a quantitative benefit of regional collaboration. 


The discussion considered the value of new partners such as 


industry, corporations, agencies, organizations, and non-profits who 


share some common goals and could gain mutual benefit.  


This is noted to be addressed in upcoming planning activities. 


 


9.  Government of Alberta update Three-year agreement is signed between AlbertaSW and Alberta Jobs, 


Economy, and Innovation. First year payment has been received. 


REDA Chairs are invited to a monthly Zoom meeting with ADM, as 


positive step toward strengthening communication and planning. 


 


10.  FCM Visionary Award The Accelerate Kootenays project, a network of more than 50 electric 


vehicle (EV) charging stations in rural BC communities was 


recognized with the FCM Visionary Award. Peaks to Prairies project 


partners gained the benefit of living “next door” to this expertise! 


 


11.  Executive Director Report Accepted as information. 


 


12.  Round Table Updates Accepted as information. 


13.  Upcoming Events 


 


 


 


➢ Peaks to Prairies Webinar: November 5, 2020 11:00 am 


E-Mobility in Southern Alberta: How can Alberta communities 


benefit from the electrification of vehicles? 


➢ EDA Conference: November 25-26, 2020. www.edaalberta.ca 


 


14.  Board Meetings 


 


➢ December 4, 2020-location TBD-Organizational Meeting 


 


15.  Adjournment  


 


Moved by Dale Gugala THAT the meeting be adjourned.  


Carried. [2020-11-712] 


 


 


    


  Chair 


Approved December 2, 2020 


 


  


  Secretary/Treasurer 


 
 


 



http://www.edaalberta.ca/






Alberta SouthWest Regional Economic Development Alliance 
International Economic Development Council (IEDC) Accredited Economic Development Organization (AEDO) 


Green Destinations Top 100 Sustainable Global Tourism Destination and Top 3 Best of the Americas 
 


Box 1041 Pincher Creek AB T0K 1W0 
403-627-3373 (office) 403-627-0244 (cell)  
bev@albertasouthwest.com 
www.albertasouthwest.com 


Alberta SouthWest Bulletin December 2020 
Regional Economic Development Alliance (REDA) Update 


 


❖ Alberta SouthWest Board Executive positions appointed for another year 
The December 2, 2020 AlbertaSW Board meeting was held via Zoom; thank you to the representatives who will 


fill the executive positions  Chair, Dr. Brian (Barney) Reeves; Vice-Chair, Mr. M.J. (Jim) Bester;  


Secretary-Treasurer, Mr. Scott Korbett; Designated Signing Authority, Mr. Brent Feyter. 
 


❖ Alberta SouthWest Regional Business License 2021 
Begun in 2003, the Regional Business License is now in its 19th year of supporting service providers do 


business in the partner communities.  


Sales of 2020 regional licenses met, and slightly exceeded, 2019… good news for many reasons.  


Thank you to the municipal staff in all offices who help make this program run smoothly! 
 


❖ Southern Alberta Business Succession Partnership 


“Begin with the end in mind”. 


On average, a business takes 5 to 7 years to sell. Start planning the path now. 


Community Futures offices have collaborated to bring to you FREE OF CHARGE services to support business 


transition planning and to connect buyers and sellers within an innovative, on-line global network. Business 


information presentations, workshops and one-on-one coaching and consulting will help you be prepared to 


sell your business. Program services will be available until March 2022. 


For more information contact: 


Alberta SouthWest - Bev Thornton bev@albertasouthwest.com 


Community Futures Southwest - Tony Walker tony@cfabsw.com 


Community Futures Crowsnest Pass - Shar Cartwright scartwright@albertacf.com 


Community Futures Highwood - Sara Noyes sara@cfhighwood.net 


Project Coordinator - Pamela Morgan pamelam@cfhighwood.net 
 


❖ Economic Developers Alberta (EDA) Conference was held November 25-26, 2020. 


A great example of a well-done virtual conference and recorded sessions remain available on YouTube. 


Call Bev for more information if that is of interest to you! bev@albertasouthwest.com 
 


❖ REDA Communications 


The Hon. Doug Schweitzer, Minister Jobs, Economy, and Innovation and MLA Martin Long, Parliamentary 


Secretary for Small Business and Tourism, met on-line with REDA Chairs and Managers on December 1. This is 


part of a scheduled a series of on-line meetings with senior administration of various ministries. This is an 


encouraging initiative that will hopefully strengthen the role of REDAs in supporting the work of the province, 


our regions, and our communities. 


 


As the saying goes in this time of COVID:  


“Stay positive … and remain negative!” 


Best wishes for a safe holiday season. 
 



mailto:bev@albertasouthwest.com

http://www.albertasouthwest.com/

mailto:bev@albertasouthwest.com

mailto:tony@cfabsw.com

mailto:scartwright@albertacf.com

mailto:sara@cfhighwood.net

mailto:pamelam@cfhighwood.net

mailto:bev@albertasouthwest.com






Alberta SouthWest Regional Economic Development Alliance 
International Economic Development Council (IEDC) Accredited Economic Development Organization (AEDO) 


Green Destinations Top 100 Sustainable Global Tourism Destination and Top 3 Best of the Americas 
 


Box 1041 Pincher Creek AB T0K 1W0 
403-627-3373 (office) 403-627-0244 (cell)  
bev@albertasouthwest.com 
www.albertasouthwest.com 


Alberta SouthWest Bulletin December 2020 
Regional Economic Development Alliance (REDA) Update 


 


❖ Alberta SouthWest Regional Business License 2021 
$ave money on “out of town” business license fees!  


Begun in 2003, the Regional Business License is now in its 19th year of supporting service 


providers do business in the partner communities.  


Sales of 2020 regional licenses met, and slightly exceeded, 2019… good news for many reasons.  
For information visit www.albertasouthwest.com and scroll down to “Regional Business License 


Program” or, contact bev@albertasouthwest.com 


 


❖ Southern Alberta Business Succession Partnership 


“Begin with the end in mind”. 


On average, a business takes 5 to 7 years to sell. Start planning the path now. 


Community Futures offices have collaborated to bring to you FREE OF 


CHARGE services to support business transition planning and to connect 


buyers and sellers within an innovative, on-line global network. Business 


information presentations, workshops and one-on-one coaching and 


consulting will help you be prepared to sell your business. 


Program services will be available until March 2022. 


For more information contact: 
Alberta SouthWest - Bev Thornton bev@albertasouthwest.com 


Community Futures Southwest - Tony Walker tony@cfabsw.com 


Community Futures Crowsnest Pass - Shar Cartwright scartwright@albertacf.com 


Community Futures Highwood - Sara Noyes sara@cfhighwood.net 


Project Coordinator - Pamela Morgan pamelam@cfhighwood.net 
 


❖ Economic Developers Alberta (EDA) Conference was held November 25-26, 2020. 


A great example of a well-done virtual conference and recorded sessions remain available on YouTube. 


Call Bev for more information if that is of interest to you! bev@albertasouthwest.com 
 


❖ REDA Communications 


The Hon. Doug Schweitzer, Minister Jobs, Economy, and Innovation and MLA Martin Long, 


Parliamentary Secretary for Small Business and Tourism, met with REDA Chairs and Managers on 


December 1. This is part of a scheduled a series of on-line meetings with senior administration of various 


ministries. This is an encouraging initiative that will hopefully strengthen the role of REDAs in 


supporting the work of the province, our regions, and our communities. 
 


As the saying goes in this time of COVID:  


“Stay positive … and remain negative!” 


Best wishes for a safe holiday season. 



mailto:bev@albertasouthwest.com

http://www.albertasouthwest.com/

http://www.albertasouthwest.com/

mailto:bev@albertasouthwest.com

mailto:bev@albertasouthwest.com

mailto:tony@cfabsw.com

mailto:scartwright@albertacf.com

mailto:sara@cfhighwood.net

mailto:pamelam@cfhighwood.net

mailto:bev@albertasouthwest.com
















 
 
 


 
Chairperson – Reeve Lorne Hickey 
 
1.0 WELCOME AND INTRODUCTIONS 1:00 
  
2.0 ADDITIONS TO / APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA  
  


3.0 ADDITIONS TO/APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES  
  


4.0 BUSINESS ITEMS ARISING FROM THE MINUTES 
  
5.0 MP and MLA UPDATES 
 5.1 MP Reports  


 5.2 MLA Reports   


  
6.0 REPORTS  


 6.1 Alberta Southwest Regional Alliance Report – Barney Reeves  


 6.2 SouthGrow - Mayor Jim Willett 


6.3 RMA – Reeve Jason Schneider  


6.4 AUMA- Tanya Thorn 


6.5 Oldman Watershed Council – Mayor Blair Painter/Shannon Frank 


6.6  Highway #3 Association – Councillor Bill Chapman   


 
7.0 NEXT MEETING 


Friday, January 8, 2020 at 1:00 – Zoom 


 


  8.0 ADJOURNMENT  


AGENDA 
FRIDAY, December 4, 2020 - 1:00 PM 


Via Zoom 


If you have any community information that you would like to have distributed to the M & R group,  
please send it to me at MayorsandReevesSW@gmail.com to be distributed.  



mailto:MayorsandReevesSW@gmail.com






 


 


  


 


 


 


Monthly Report 
For Mayors and Reeves 


Feb 


November 2020| By: Peter Casurella 


SouthGrow Regional Initiative 


P: 403-394-0615 


E: peter.casurella@southgrow.com 


Labour supply and type routinely tops the list for global site selectors. That’s why 


SouthGrow and our Partners are working to address labour market problems 


and future proof our region to ensure investment.  







 


 


1 


November 2020 
 


The Skil ls Gap  


Dear Mayors and Reeves, 
 
Every year Site Selector Magazine ranks the issues that drive site-selector decision making and every year labour 
concerns top the list. This covers everything from the amount and cost of labour, to the types of skills and graduates 
that a region can supply, and more. Here in Southern Alberta we have a good problem, caused by both economic 
success and rapid labour market changes, in that we don’t have enough of the right kind of labour to meet demand 
among our fastest growing sectors.  
 
Over the past year, SouthGrow pulled together a partnership involving Lethbridge College, EDL, the Town of Taber, 
Vulcan County, Alberta Southwest, Community Futures Alberta Southwest, and Lethbridge Family Services to identify 
the skills gaps evolving in our region so that we can react in real time.  
 
It was a big project, made challenging by covid-19 surging onto the scene and complicating our study-space, but we 
got it done and the press release will be launched early in December.  
 
The study identified key gaps in both soft and technical skills related to employer demand. Or regional educational 
institutes will be leveraging the study to inform their own program and capital development to adjust to a changing 
marketplace, and our economic development partners will be pursuing the four recommendation streams coming out 
of the report to further strengthen our ability to meet labour demands. Lethbridge Family Services has already 
leveraged the study into a ‘next-steps’ project to help increase immigrant employment outcomes in the region.  
 
Stay tuned for the official press release, and more work from SouthGrow to address this important issue.  
 
In related news, SouthGrow is currently collecting scholarship applications for our Agri-food Futures Scholarship. If 
you know a young person attending the U of L or Lethbridge College who wants to work in the agri-food industry, 
have them reach out.  
 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
Peter Casurella 
Executive Director 
SouthGrow Regional Economic Development 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 







Headlines for November  


 
Strategic Collaborations 
 


- Highway 3 Twinning Development Association: Advocacy for our next four priorities is being advanced, and 
our petition is poised to hit 3500 signatures.  
 


- RINSA: The Regional Innovation Network of Southern Alberta continues to support innovation in the region. 
Check out their brand-new website at rinsa.ca 
 


- Southern Alberta Alternative Energy Association: SAAEP has been profiled heavily in the news lately as the 
media tunes in to the unprecedented lineup of new energy projects. Alberta Labour and Jobs, Economy, and 
Innovation are both working on sector strategies to support renewables, and we anticipate more movement 
from government on this front. Please note: The SAAEP partners worked very hard to make sure renewables 
became a priority for this government. 
 


- SAITI: Leads are up, Ag and Forestry is engaging with us regularly, JEI has begun to engage, and with Invest 
Alberta ramping up, we are poised to play a prominent local role. We are pushing forward a year-end 
marketing project.   
 


- Education: SouthGrow has completed our regional Skills Gap Study that we started one full year ago with our 
partners. Our Scholarship intake is currently open.  
 


- Sustainability: Peaks to Prairies is finished, Our application to the FCM for the EV bus trial is in, we have a 
new pilot project on sustainability in the works with one of our communities, the diversion facility in Coaldale 
that we supported last year is about to become a reality. 
 


- Canada’s Premier Food Corridor: This successful cluster brand continues to gain traction and is moving 
forward to pursue lead development and marketing with support from SouthGrow  
 


- Canada’s Western Gateway: This newly formed logistics and transportation cluster has completed a logo 
design challenge by students at Lethbridge College and is already garnering Provincial and Federal attention. 
SouthGrow continues to support to help set the brand up.  
 


Marketing & Communications 


 
- Covid continues to frustrate our plans for Ag Expo in February. We are hoping to work with Exhibition Park to 


attract conferences in the Agri-food, renewables, and logistics spaces.  
 


- We are also looking to leverage training that our staff previously took in selling to Site Selectors to deliver an 
online marketing campaign in the agri-food space to make sure that Southern Alberta continues to top the list 
for companies looking for greener fields or expansion opportunities. This is in the works in partnership with 
the U of L  with a targeted spring project.  
 


- Newsletters are rolling every two-weeks. Thank you to Marilou Dupray for her work to produce these for us.  


 
Economic Development & Innovation 







 


 


3 


 


 


 


 


- Broadband: Next steps for our efforts involve matchmaking between CCI (recently acquired by Explorenet) 
and our remaining communities. They have a mandate to deploy infrastructure and build out the rural 
network. All they need is cooperation.   
 


- The Highway 4 EV handibus pilot project is in.  
 


- Electric Vehicles: We are applying to administer funding as part of the ZEVIP program provided by NRCAN. 
We have a strong application and potential partnerships that will accelerate the program. Paperwork is due 
on the 10th.  
 


Administration 
 


- The SouthGrow Board is actively exploring options to make our association sustainable in the wake of a 50% 
funding cut from the Provincial Government. Our new Minister Schweitzer still needs to be informed about the 
priorities and opportunities in rural economic development.  


 
- We are currently upgrading our internal policies and procedures to ensure that we are operating according to 


current best practices.  
 


- Two new communities have opted to join SouthGrow. Please welcome the Village of Foremost, home to 
Western Canada’s first UAS testing range, and Warner County, home of Canada’s Western Gateway to the 
group!  
 


- Don’t forget to email info@southgrow.com if you would like to get signed up for our economic development 
newsletter. This newsletter has been called ‘The Best Economic Development Newsletter in the West’ (mostly 
by us, but that doesn’t make it less true.) It comes packed with great resources for you and your people.  


 
 


 


 


 


southgrow.com 


Economic Development | Government Relations  


All content copyright © 1999 - 2018 SouthGrow Regional Initiative. All rights 


reserved. Corporate Access Number: 5111053608 


About SouthGrow Regional Initiate  


SouthGrow is an economic development alliance of twenty-six south central Alberta 


communities committed to working together to achieve prosperity for the region. 


Representing over 170,000 people, SouthGrow is committed to assisting 


communities, organizations, businesses, and people in the region to further their 


economic development goals and to maintain the high quality of life. 



mailto:info@southgrow.com






 


 


  


 


 


 


Monthly Report 
For Mayors and Reeves 


Feb 


November 2020| By: Peter Casurella 


SouthGrow Regional Initiative 


P: 403-394-0615 


E: peter.casurella@southgrow.com 


Labour supply and type routinely tops the list for global site selectors. That’s why 


SouthGrow and our Partners are working to address labour market problems 


and future proof our region to ensure investment.  







 


 


1 


November 2020 
 


The Skil ls Gap  


Dear Mayors and Reeves, 
 
Every year Site Selector Magazine ranks the issues that drive site-selector decision making and every year labour 
concerns top the list. This covers everything from the amount and cost of labour, to the types of skills and graduates 
that a region can supply, and more. Here in Southern Alberta we have a good problem, caused by both economic 
success and rapid labour market changes, in that we don’t have enough of the right kind of labour to meet demand 
among our fastest growing sectors.  
 
Over the past year, SouthGrow pulled together a partnership involving Lethbridge College, EDL, the Town of Taber, 
Vulcan County, Alberta Southwest, Community Futures Alberta Southwest, and Lethbridge Family Services to identify 
the skills gaps evolving in our region so that we can react in real time.  
 
It was a big project, made challenging by covid-19 surging onto the scene and complicating our study-space, but we 
got it done and the press release will be launched early in December.  
 
The study identified key gaps in both soft and technical skills related to employer demand. Or regional educational 
institutes will be leveraging the study to inform their own program and capital development to adjust to a changing 
marketplace, and our economic development partners will be pursuing the four recommendation streams coming out 
of the report to further strengthen our ability to meet labour demands. Lethbridge Family Services has already 
leveraged the study into a ‘next-steps’ project to help increase immigrant employment outcomes in the region.  
 
Stay tuned for the official press release, and more work from SouthGrow to address this important issue.  
 
In related news, SouthGrow is currently collecting scholarship applications for our Agri-food Futures Scholarship. If 
you know a young person attending the U of L or Lethbridge College who wants to work in the agri-food industry, 
have them reach out.  
 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
Peter Casurella 
Executive Director 
SouthGrow Regional Economic Development 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 







Headlines for November  


 
Strategic Collaborations 
 


- Highway 3 Twinning Development Association: Advocacy for our next four priorities is being advanced, and 
our petition is poised to hit 3500 signatures.  
 


- RINSA: The Regional Innovation Network of Southern Alberta continues to support innovation in the region. 
Check out their brand-new website at rinsa.ca 
 


- Southern Alberta Alternative Energy Association: SAAEP has been profiled heavily in the news lately as the 
media tunes in to the unprecedented lineup of new energy projects. Alberta Labour and Jobs, Economy, and 
Innovation are both working on sector strategies to support renewables, and we anticipate more movement 
from government on this front. Please note: The SAAEP partners worked very hard to make sure renewables 
became a priority for this government. 
 


- SAITI: Leads are up, Ag and Forestry is engaging with us regularly, JEI has begun to engage, and with Invest 
Alberta ramping up, we are poised to play a prominent local role. We are pushing forward a year-end 
marketing project.   
 


- Education: SouthGrow has completed our regional Skills Gap Study that we started one full year ago with our 
partners. Our Scholarship intake is currently open.  
 


- Sustainability: Peaks to Prairies is finished, Our application to the FCM for the EV bus trial is in, we have a 
new pilot project on sustainability in the works with one of our communities, the diversion facility in Coaldale 
that we supported last year is about to become a reality. 
 


- Canada’s Premier Food Corridor: This successful cluster brand continues to gain traction and is moving 
forward to pursue lead development and marketing with support from SouthGrow  
 


- Canada’s Western Gateway: This newly formed logistics and transportation cluster has completed a logo 
design challenge by students at Lethbridge College and is already garnering Provincial and Federal attention. 
SouthGrow continues to support to help set the brand up.  
 


Marketing & Communications 


 
- Covid continues to frustrate our plans for Ag Expo in February. We are hoping to work with Exhibition Park to 


attract conferences in the Agri-food, renewables, and logistics spaces.  
 


- We are also looking to leverage training that our staff previously took in selling to Site Selectors to deliver an 
online marketing campaign in the agri-food space to make sure that Southern Alberta continues to top the list 
for companies looking for greener fields or expansion opportunities. This is in the works in partnership with 
the U of L  with a targeted spring project.  
 


- Newsletters are rolling every two-weeks. Thank you to Marilou Dupray for her work to produce these for us.  


 
Economic Development & Innovation 







 


 


3 


 


 


 


 


- Broadband: Next steps for our efforts involve matchmaking between CCI (recently acquired by Explorenet) 
and our remaining communities. They have a mandate to deploy infrastructure and build out the rural 
network. All they need is cooperation.   
 


- The Highway 4 EV handibus pilot project is in.  
 


- Electric Vehicles: We are applying to administer funding as part of the ZEVIP program provided by NRCAN. 
We have a strong application and potential partnerships that will accelerate the program. Paperwork is due 
on the 10th.  
 


Administration 
 


- The SouthGrow Board is actively exploring options to make our association sustainable in the wake of a 50% 
funding cut from the Provincial Government. Our new Minister Schweitzer still needs to be informed about the 
priorities and opportunities in rural economic development.  


 
- We are currently upgrading our internal policies and procedures to ensure that we are operating according to 


current best practices.  
 


- Two new communities have opted to join SouthGrow. Please welcome the Village of Foremost, home to 
Western Canada’s first UAS testing range, and Warner County, home of Canada’s Western Gateway to the 
group!  
 


- Don’t forget to email info@southgrow.com if you would like to get signed up for our economic development 
newsletter. This newsletter has been called ‘The Best Economic Development Newsletter in the West’ (mostly 
by us, but that doesn’t make it less true.) It comes packed with great resources for you and your people.  


 
 


 


 


 


southgrow.com 


Economic Development | Government Relations  


All content copyright © 1999 - 2018 SouthGrow Regional Initiative. All rights 


reserved. Corporate Access Number: 5111053608 


About SouthGrow Regional Initiate  


SouthGrow is an economic development alliance of twenty-six south central Alberta 


communities committed to working together to achieve prosperity for the region. 


Representing over 170,000 people, SouthGrow is committed to assisting 


communities, organizations, businesses, and people in the region to further their 


economic development goals and to maintain the high quality of life. 



mailto:info@southgrow.com






a
PO͑Box͑1˴˵2͑͑͑͑͑͑Lethbridgẹ͑Alberta͑͑͑͑͑͑T1J͑4K5͒
shannonΏoldmanwatershed̢ca͑͑͑403̸317̸132˴͒


a
URdaVG VQ Ma[QTU & RGGXGU ^ DGcGObGT 4, 2020a


a
a
a
OWT QTKIKPaN BQaTFa
QH DKTGcVQTU KPa
JaPWaT[ 2005a
a
a
a
a
a


CGNGbTaVKPI 15 YGaTU QH SVGYaTdUJKRa
2020 KU QWT 15VJ aPPKXGTUaT[ aU a TGIKUVGTGF PQPRTQHKV UQcKGV[ KP ANbGTVa. TJQWIJ QWT KP-RGTUQP cGNGbTaVKQP KUa
FGNa[GF WPVKN YG caP IaVJGT UaHGN[, VJGTG aTG UVKNN OaP[ accQORNKUJOGPVU VJaV YGǷXG JaF b[ YQTMKPI VQIGVJGT aNNa
VJGUG [GaTU. TJaPM [QW HQT [QWT UWRRQTV aPF KPXGUVOGPVU QXGT VJG RaUV 15 [GaTU! WG YQWNF PQV GZKUV YKVJQWV QWTa
OaP[ RaTVPGTU aV OWPKcKRaNKVKGU YJQ JaXG XQNWPVGGTGF VJGKT VKOG, FQPaVGF VJGKT HWPFU aPF UWRRQTVGF QWT ITaPVa
aRRNKcaVKQPU. CJGGTU VQ aPQVJGT 15 [GaTU QH YaVGTUJGF UVGYaTFUJKR!a a


BacMcQWPVT[ EdWcaVKQP aPd RGUVQTaVKQPa
ͲP 2020 YG TGUVQTGF GTQFKPI UVTGaObaPMU aNQPI OWNVKRNGa
UVTGVcJGU QH BGaXGT CTGGM aPF DWVcJ CTGGM b[ UVaMKPIa
YKNNQYU KPVQ VJG ITQWPF aPF RNaPVKPI UGGFNKPIU QH PaVKXGa
VTGGU aPF UJTWbU.aa
a
MQUV QH QWT GFWcaVKQP aPF QWVTGacJ acVKXKVKGU UJKHVGF HTQOa
KP-RGTQP VQ QPNKPG aPF YG TGNGaUGF a 3 RaTV bNQI UGTKGUa
UJQYcaUKPI JQY TGUVQTaVKQP KU cQORNGVGF, HTQO RNaPPKPI VQa
OQPKVQTKPI, VJTQWIJ XKFGQU aPF YTKVVGP UVQTKGU. ȽCJGcM QWVa
VJG XKdGQU QP QWT bNQI:a
YYY.QNdOaPYaVGTUJGd.ca/bNQIȽ.aa


ͲP SRTKPI 2021 YG RNaP VQ JKTG 4 UWOOGT OWVTGacJa
AUUKUVaPVU VQ cQPVKPWG bacMcQWPVT[ GFWcaVKQP aU YGNN aUa
UWTXG[ WUGTU VQ GXaNWaVG QWT UWccGUU UKPcG bGIKPPKPI VJG RTQITaO KP 2015.aa



http://www.oldmanwatershed.ca/bog





YQWVJ EdWcaVKQP BGKPI OHHGTGd DKIKVaNN[aa


EacJ [GaT OWC GPIaIGU JWPFTGFU QH UVWFGPVUa
KP JaPFU-QP GFWcaVKQPaN acVKXKVKGU VQa
GPcQWTaIG GPXKTQPOGPVaN TGURQPUKbKNKV[ aPF aa
UVGYaTFUJKR GVJKc. ͲP 2019-20 aNQPG YG NGFa
KPVGTacVKXG RTQITaOOKPI YKVJ 630 UVWFGPVU aVa
17 FKHHGTGPV GXGPVU. WKVJ UcJQQNU bGKPI cNQUGFa
HQT RaTV QH 2020 OaP[ QH QWT GXGPVU YGTGa
caPcGNNGF.aa


TJG aPPWaN CaTKPI HQT QWT WaVGTUJGFU cQPVGUVa
KU bGKPI QHHGTGF aIaKP aPF UVaTVU YKVJ aPa
KP-cNaUU RTGUGPVaVKQP abQWV VJGKT NQcaNa
YaVGTUJGF, aPF VJGP aUMU UVWFGPVU VQ RWVa
VQIGVJGT a RTQLGcV RTQRQUaN VQ aPUYGT VJG SWGUVKQP, ǺWJaV caP [QW FQ VQ KORTQXG [QWT YaVGTUJGF?ǻ ͲP 2019, 56a
UVWFGPV RTQRQUaNU YGTG UWbOKVVGF HTQO VJTGG UcJQQNU KP VJG ONFOaP YaVGTUJGF. CQPITaVWNaVKQPU VQ VJG UVWFGPVUa
HTQO CaTFUVQP JWPKQT HKIJ ScJQQN aPF MaITaVJ JWPKQT SGPKQT HKIJ ScJQQN YJQ YGTG aOQPI VJG 2020 YKPPGTU!aa


TQ bQQM a XKTVWaN RTGUGPVaVKQP HQT [QWT [QWVJ ITQWR RNGaUG cQPVacV ȽUQHKG@QNdOaPYaVGTUJGd.caȽ.aa


a


a


A LGIac[ QH BWKNdKPI RGUKNKGPcGa


TJG OWC KU RTQWF VQ UWRRQTV QWT TWTaN cQOOWPKV[a
NGaFGTU YJQ OaPaIG VJG NaPF aPF YaVGT KP Ya[U VJaVa
bGPGHKV aNN QH WU. OWT cQOOWPKVKGU TGN[ QP QWT HaTOGTUa
aPF TaPcJGTU VQ RTQVGcV VJG GcQU[UVGO UGTXKcGU VJaV YGa
aNN FGRGPF QP HQT UaHG, cNGaP YaVGT aPF RTQFWcVKXG NaPF.a


SKPcG 2009, VJG OWC JaU bGGP KPXGUVKPI KP ITaUUTQQVUa
UVGYaTFUJKR RTQLGcVU NGF b[ aITKcWNVWTaN RTQFWcGTU aPFa
cQOOWPKV[ ITQWRU. TQ FaVG YG JaXG UWRRQTVGF 65a
RTQLGcVU VQVaNNKPI $185,000. TJGUG TGUVQTaVKQP RTQLGcVUa
JaXG KORTQXGF YaVGT SWaNKV[ aPF TKRaTKaP JabKVaV YJKNGa
aNUQ bGPGHKVKPI NQcaN TaPcJGTU aPF HaTOGTU YJQ FGRGPFa
QP JGaNVJ[ NaPF HQT a UWUVaKPabNG QRGTaVKQP.aa
a
OWC YKNN bG accGRVKPI aRRNKcaVKQPU HQT 2020-21a
RTQLGcVU XGT[ UQQP UQ RNGaUG IGV KP VQWcJ VQ dKUcWUUa
[QWT RTQLGcV. DGadNKPG VQ aRRN[ YKNN bG FGbTWaT[ 1UV,a
2021.a a
a


a
a


a



mailto:sofie@oldmanwatershed.ca






 


 
1.0 WELCOME AND INTRODUCTIONS 


 Reeve Lorne Hickey called the meeting to order at 1:00pm. 
 
1.1 Election of Chairperson – Reeve Lorne Hickey was nominated to be the Chairperson – Accepted 


 
1.2 Election of Vice Chairperson – Mayor Ruth Goodwin was nominated to be the Vice Chairperson - 


Accepted 
 
2.0 ADDITIONS TO / APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 


Moved by Mayor Ed Weistra- Carried 
 
3.0 ADDITIONS TO / APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES 
 Moved by Mayor Peggy Losey - Carried 


 
4.0 BUSINESS ITEMS ARISING FROM MINUTES 
  
5.0 REPORTS 
 


  5.1 MP Reports – No reports 
   


 5.2 MLA Reports 
    
   MLA Grant Hunter -  


• Gave an update on all the bills that have been introduced; 
o Bill 35, Tax Amendment Act 
o Bill 36, The Geothermal Resource Development Act 
o Bill 37, Builders Lien (prompt payment) Amendment Act 
o Bill 38, Justice Statutes Amendment Act 
o Bill 39, Childcare Licensing and Amendment Act 
o Bill 40, Forests Amendment Act 
o Bill 41, Insurance Amendment Act 
o Bill 42, North Saskatchewan River Basin Water Authorization Act 
o Bill 43, Financing Alberta’s Strategic Transportation Act 
o Bill 44, Financial Statutes Amendment Act 
o Bill 45, Local Authorities Election Amendment Act 
o Bill 46, Health Statutes Amendment Act 
o Bill 47, Ensuring Safety and Cutting Red Tape Act 
o Bill 205, Private Member Bill aimed at tackling a surging number of fentanyl 


overdoses in the province. 
o Bill 206, Property Rights Statutes Amendment Act 


 


 


6.0 REPORTS 


 
6.1 Alberta Southwest Regional Alliance Report – Mayor Blair Painter 


• Discussed Peaks to Prairies launching EV – new funding available for charging station 
installations and electric vehicles. 


 


6.2 SouthGrow – Mayor Jim Willett 


MINUTES 
Friday, November 6, 2020 


Culver City Room, Lethbridge City Hall 
910 – Fourth Avenue South, Lethbridge 


 







 
Mayors and Reeves of Southwest Alberta                                                                                                                                        Page 2  


November 1, 2019 Minutes 


• EV charging program has new opportunities available.  An excellent opportunity to 
get up to 50% paid for. 


 


 6.3 RMA – Reeve Jason Schneider 


• New representative for RMA south zone.  


• RMA will be fact checking and responding to comments made by the Premiere in 
regards to the Assessment Model review. 


• Shallow Gas deadline has come and gone. 


 


           6.4 AUMA – Tanya Thorn 


• No report. 


    


6.5 Oldman Watershed Council – Shannon Frank 


• Presented to the Grassy Mountain Coalmine hearing panel on behalf of all 
stakeholders. 


• Summer and Fall restoration projects are finished.  Planted willows and monitored 
aquatic life.  


 
        6.6 Highway #3 Association- Bill Chapman 


• No report. 


  


 Mayor Chris Spearman discussed EMS dispatching.  Would like to see a collaborative approach. 


 
8.0 NEXT MEETING DATE 


Friday, December 4, 2020 – 1:00 via Zoom 
 
9.0 ADJOURNMENT:  
 
  Moved Mayor Ruth Goodwin to adjourn meeting at 2:01 pm.  Carried 
 
 
 


  

















SouthGrow Regional Initiative 
403.394.0615 


P.O. Box 27068 
Lethbridge, Alberta 


Canada T1K 6Z8 


 
 
 


The SouthGrow Agri-Food Futures Scholarship 
 
The Agri-Food Futures Scholarship was created by the Board of Directors of the SouthGrow 
Regional Initiative in 2019 to support local youth who want to pursue a career in the agri-food 
industry in southern Alberta. SouthGrow is a Regional Economic Development Alliance of 26 
communities in south-central Alberta which is dedicated to opening up new economic 
opportunities for the region and supporting the continued quality of life enjoyed by our 
citizens. The promotion and development of the agri-food industry in southern Alberta is one 
of our chief priorities. 
 
Scholarship Value  
 
$1500 one-time payment. 2x Scholarships are Available. One for an eligible student attending 
the University of Lethbridge, and one for a student attending Lethbridge College.  
 
Eligibility Criteria 
 
Applicants must: 
 


• Be a Canadian citizen, Permanent Resident, or Protected Person (visa students are not 
eligible) 


• Be a permanent resident of one of the 26 SouthGrow Communities 


• Be enrolled in full-time studies at either the University of Lethbridge or Lethbridge 
College for the coming year in either a undergraduate or graduate program. 


• Have an intention to use your education to work in the Agri-food industry in 
Southern Alberta upon graduation. 


 
Application Process 
 
Please submit the following documents to peter.casurella@southgrow.com for consideration.  
 


• An official transcript (high school or to-date university transcript, whichever is 
applicable. Photocopies or scans are acceptable) 


• A 1-page letter addressed to the Board of Directors of the SouthGrow Regional 
Initiative that introduces yourself and explains how you hope to apply the educational 
program you are enrolled in to pursue a career in the agri-food industry in southern 
Alberta.  


• Two professional references who can be contacted to speak on your behalf. 
 


Due Date 
 
Please submit your application before December 15th, 2020 to be considered in the 2020 round. Disbursement of 
the scholarship will be aimed at January for the Spring Semester.  
 
Selection Process 
 
The Board of Directors will review applications and select a recipient based on a majority vote of the members. 
Consideration will be given to grades and to your demonstrated experience and/or interest in the agri-food 
industry, as outlined by specific examples in your letter and supported by your references.  


Eligible Communities 
 


Village of Arrowwood 
Blood Tribe 


Town of Cardston 
Cardston County 


Village of Carmangay 
Village of Champion 
Town of Claresholm 


Town of Coaldale 
Town of Coalhurst 


Village of Coutts 
Village of Foremost 


City of Lethbridge 
Lethbridge County 
Village of Lomond 
Town of Magrath 


MD of Taber 
Town of Milk River 


Village of Milo 
Town of Nobleford 


Town of Picture Butte 
Town of Raymond 


Village of Stirling 
Town of Taber 


Town of Vauxhall 
Town of Vulcan 
Vulcan County 


County of Warner 
Village of Warner 


 
 



mailto:peter.casurella@southgrow.com











 


 


Classification: Protected A 


Questions and Answers from CMOH Municipality Briefing (November 25) 
 


Travel: 
What travel recommendations or 
restrictions, if any, are currently in 
place? 
 
 


Travel within or outside the province is not restricted at this 
time. However, Alberta is recommending against non-
essential travel within the province, particularly from areas 
with high case counts (Enhanced Areas) into areas with 
lower cases (Open Areas). This recommendation against 
non-essential travel extends to travelling between 
provinces, or internationally. 
 
Communities are encouraged to take measures to limit 
access to their facilities by teams and groups that are from 
outside of their areas. 
 
If Albertans must travel, they should follow all of the 
measures that are in place en-route and at their final 
destination, including physical distancing and gathering 
restrictions. They should take all precautions to protect their 
health and the health of others, and should download and 
use Alberta’s mobile contact tracing app.  
 


Community Centres 
What rules are in effect for 
community centres? Do they need to 
close outright or are there exceptions? 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Is an after school program in a 
community association building 
permitted to operate? 
 
Are Legions and community halls in 
non watch and Edmonton and Calgary 
areas shutdown?  
 
Can council use community centers 
for holding council meetings at the 
25% capacity to allow for more 
distancing? 
 
 
 


Community centres in Enhanced regions must be closed to 
the public at this time.  However, some activities in 
community halls are permitted to continue, including: 
- The provision of health care services 
- Provision of child care services 
- Elections and related activities 
- Jury selections 
- Sheltering for vulnerable persons 
- Worship 
- Indoor markets.  
 
After-school programs may operate at a community centre.  
 
 
Legion bars and restaurants must follow the restrictions in 
Order 39. They should not be rented out or have social 
events at this time.  
 
At this time, council meetings cannot be held in community 
centres.   
 
 
 
 
 



https://www.alberta.ca/ab-trace-together.aspx

https://open.alberta.ca/dataset/2989fb37-80c8-4fcd-acb1-aa07121c9db7/resource/3eede813-b609-4a48-a08b-738eeb685c6f/download/health-cmoh-record-of-decision-cmoh-order-39-2020.pdf





 


 


Classification: Protected A 


Many rec centers are designed as 
multi use. Could you help provide 
guidance that may have a variety of 
activities from Libraries, meeting 
spaces, fitness centres, etc? How 
should the 25% capacity and restricted 
use applications apply together? 
 


Recreation Centres are allowed to operate at 25% capacity. 
The Rec Centre Operator must calculate 25% of their fire 
code occupancy and ensure that the number of attendees 
does not exceed this maximum number. Additionally, each 
venue in the Rec Centre should follow applicable restrictions 
(rather than all venues following the recreation centre 
restrictions). Operators should review Order 39, Appendix A, 
and the overview of enhanced restrictions to determine the 
operating restrictions for each venue. For example, libraries, 
fitness centres, dance studios, rinks and pools must abide by 
25% capacity. They should calculate their maximum 
occupancy and enforce it. Theatres, auditoriums, and indoor 
children’s play places must close. Restaurants may stay open 
but cannot provide entertainment (except VLTs), and must 
end alcohol service at 10, and close at 11.  


Bars & Restaurants 
Who is responsible in a restaurant to 
ensure that the six people sitting at a 
table are from the same household? 
 


Bars and restaurants in Enhanced areas are permitted to 
remain open and operate following current restrictions and 
the existing public health guidance.  
The onus is on patrons to ensure they are only going to 
restaurants and bars with their immediate household, or if 
they live alone, with the 2 non-household contacts they 
have chosen. Restaurants are encouraged to promote 
compliance with this public health requirement by posting 
prominent signs about the requirement, and reminding 
patrons verbally before they dine.  
Note that restaurants, bars, pubs and lounges that serve 
alcohol must stop alcohol sales at 10pm and close to the 
public at 11pm (Order 39). 


Status Map Changes 
Given that some communities have 
frequently moved in and out of 
Enhanced Status as cases are added or 
resolved, how will the measures apply 
to these communities? It is very 
difficult for communities and 
businesses to plan if their rules are 
subject to daily changes.  
 


Communities who are at Enhanced on the Provincial 
Relaunch Status Map at any time on or after November 27 
must keep all measures in effect until at least December 15, 
regardless of whether their daily active cases and case rate 
would otherwise merit a change back to Open Status. 
 
Please see the Enhanced Public Health Measures page for 
the full list of measures and restrictions.  
 


Social Gatherings/Home Visit 
Limitations 
Definitions for social gatherings – does 
this include coffees, lunches, or other 
workplace gatherings? Are alcoholics 
anonymous meetings considered 
social gatherings? 
 
The Alberta Covid website is 
inconsistent in the explanation 


A private social gathering is defined as any type or private 
social function or gathering at which a group of persons 
come together and move freely around to associate, mix, or 
interact with each other for social purposes rather than 
remaining seated, or stationary, for the duration of the 
function or gathering, but does not include a gathering in 
which all persons are members of the same household. 
 



https://www.alberta.ca/assets/documents/health-cmoh-record-of-decision-cmoh-order-39-2020.pdf

https://www.alberta.ca/enhanced-public-health-measures.aspx

https://open.alberta.ca/dataset/covid-19-information-guidance-for-restaurants-cafes-pubs-and-bars

https://www.alberta.ca/maps/covid-19-status-map.htm

https://www.alberta.ca/maps/covid-19-status-map.htm

https://www.alberta.ca/enhanced-public-health-measures.aspx





 


 


Classification: Protected A 


regarding gatherings.  In a non-
enhanced area, is it no gatherings or 
gathering with 50 or less allowed? 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
If a house is having short term family 
visitor staying 1-5 days is that banned 
as a social gathering or is it different? 
 
 


With the execution of Order 38, no indoor social gatherings 
are permitted in any setting (private homes, public spaces or 
workplaces), anywhere in Alberta. 


o Indoor close contacts must be limited to people in 
the same household 


o People who live alone can have up to the same 2 
non-household contacts for the duration of the 
restriction. 


o Workplace social gatherings, coffees, or lunches are 
not permitted.  


o Work meetings and mutual support group meetings 
are not considered to be social gatherings and can 
continue, but attendance should be limited and 
public health measures followed. No socializing can 
occur in these settings.  


o This restriction does not apply to service visits from 
caregivers, health or child care providers and co-
parenting arrangements 


Outdoor social gatherings are allowed with up to 10 people 
and must not have an indoor component 


 Backyard gatherings that require movement in/out 
of homes are not permitted 


 Attendees should remain distanced at all times and 
follow public health measures 


The Order limiting access to private residences by non-
household members does not prevent a person from 
entering the private residence of another person for any of 
the following purposes: 


 To provide healthcare, personal care, or 
housekeeping services; 


 For a visit between a child and a parent or guardian 
who does not normally reside with that child; 


 To receive or provide childcare; 


 To provide tutoring or other educational instruction; 


 To perform construction, renovations, repairs, or 
maintenance; 


 To deliver items; 


 To provide real estate or moving services; 


 To provide social or protective services; 


 To respond to an emergency. 
Festivals and events are prohibited (indoors and outdoors). 
 
Short-term family visitors are not allowed at this time. (See  
Part 1 of Order 38: people in private residences cannot 
permit a person who does not normally reside in that 
residence to enter or remain in that residence.)  



https://open.alberta.ca/dataset/04afb7ea-dde7-4255-a16f-744f378fe0a0/resource/d9ee39d8-7446-4d61-9714-f3aa84202b3b/download/health-cmoh-record-of-decision-cmoh-order-38-2020.pdf





 


 


Classification: Protected A 


Can a contractor come into my home 
to continue renovations? 
 
 
People moving from current homes 
December 1, what is the concern with 
families helping a family member 
move? 
 
 
 
Seniors accommodation specifically 
smaller apartment type complexes - in 
many of these facilities there is a 
common space. Are seniors not to 
gather in this common space that 
many view as their homes?  
 
 
We have a daytime warming centre 
for vulnerable individuals. Are these 
considered community centres and 
need to be closed? 
 
 
 
Are there restrictions on FCSS 
programming or can in person 
children’s programs continue even in 
enhanced zones? 
 


Contractors can come to a private residence to perform 
construction, renovations, repairs or maintenance under 
Order 38, Part 1, clause 4, sub-section E. 
 
People are permitted to enter the private residences of 
others to deliver items or to provide housekeeping services. 
This could include assistance with moving. However, 
providing assistance for family and friends who are moving is 
generally not recommended at this time because of the 
social element.  
 
Continuing care residences and facilities are subject to Order 
29 and 32, regarding in-residence activities. Under these 
orders, gathering and group activities in common areas are 
permitted. However, in apartment buildings which are not 
continuing care facilities, all indoor areas outside of private 
suites are considered to be in public indoor spaces. No social 
gatherings can occur in these areas.  
 
Any facility that provides shelter for vulnerable persons may 
continue to remain open for that purpose with appropriate 
mitigation measures in place (i.e., masking, distancing, and 
hand hygiene). This includes community centres and all 
places of business and entities listed in Section 1, Appendix 
A, of Order 39.  
 
FCSS programming can continue with mitigations in place.  
 


Masking 
What are the new rules for masking, 
to whom do they apply, and in which 
communities? 
 
 


Masks are mandatory in all indoor public places in Calgary 
and Edmonton and surrounding areas, including any indoor 
location where a business or entity is operating, except 
when working alone in an office, or a safely distanced 
cubicle, or an appropriate barrier is in place. 


o This applies to all employees, visitors, delivery 
personnel and contractors 


o This includes all locations where employees are 
present and masks won’t pose a safety risk 


o This does not change current student mask 
requirements in schools 


Masks are also required in common areas of multi-family or 
multi-resident buildings or facilities, including condos and 
seniors residences. 
 
Masks are mandatory for worship services and faith-based 
gatherings in all Enhanced Status areas.  



https://open.alberta.ca/dataset/f075e30e-7ba1-4520-abe1-fb6076889cd4/resource/6d280e9e-2f25-4929-b6ca-51188151523e/download/health-cmoh-record-of-decision-cmoh-29-2020.pdf

https://open.alberta.ca/dataset/7680fe82-f705-43e2-9fbe-979f6b0847b0/resource/4b2168f6-7324-40db-8387-29f27fc930ff/download/health-cmoh-record-of-decision-cmoh-32-2020.pdf





 


 


Classification: Protected A 


 
The Edmonton Area includes: 
Beaumont, Devon, Edmonton, Evansburg, Fort 
Saskatchewan, Gibbons, Leduc, Leduc County (and the 
communities within its boundaries), Morinville, Parkland 
County (and the communities within its boundaries), St. 
Albert, Spruce Grove, Stony Plain, Strathcona County (and 
the communities within its boundaries), Sturgeon County 
(and the communities within its boundaries), Thorsby. 
 
The Calgary Area includes: 
Airdrie, Calgary, Chestermere, Cochrane, Foothills County 
(and the communities within its boundaries), High River, 
Okotoks, Rockyview County (and the communities within its 
boundaries). 
 
Exceptions to this rule include people who are: 


 A child under 2 years of age; 


 Unable to place, use or remove a face mask without 
assistance; 


 Unable to wear a facemask due to a mental or 
physical concern or limitation; 


 Consuming food or drink; 


 Persons engaging in physical exercise; 


 Persons providing or receiving care or assistance 
where a facemask would hinder that caregiving or 
assistance; 


 A person alone at a workstation who is separated by 
at least 2 metres from other persons; 


 A person who is the subject of a workplace hazard 
assessment in which it is determined that the 
person’s safety will be at risk if the person wears a 
mask while working; 


 A person who is separated by every other person by 
a physical barrier that prevents droplet 
transmission; 


 A person who needs to temporarily remove their 
facemask while in the public place for the purposes 
of: receiving a service that requires the temporary 
removal of a facemask; an emergency or medical 
purpose; or establishing their identity. 


 
General mask use is recommended, but not required, for 
communities outside of the Edmonton and Calgary areas 
(with the exception of worship services in Enhanced Status 
areas). 
 







 


 


Classification: Protected A 


Enforcement 
Which authorities and/or officers are 
empowered to enforce public health 
orders? 
 


For complaints related to businesses: 


 AHS Public Health Inspectors  
For complaints related to Albertans: 


 Police Officers 


 All uniformed Community Peace Officers Level 1 


 All uniformed Alberta Peace Officers Level 2 who are 
employed/engaged by the Ministry of Environment 
and Parks, Environmental Enforcement Services 


For Continuing Care: 


 Executive Officers in continuing care settings  


Worship Services 
What new rules are in place for 
worship services, and how would 
capacity be measured?   


In all regions under Enhanced Status, attendance at places of 
worship is restricted to a maximum of 1/3 of fire code 
occupancy, and masking is be required.  


 Physical distancing between households must be 
maintained. 


 In-person faith group meetings can continue, but must 
maintain physical distancing and public health measures 
must be followed. Virtual attendance is encouraged 


Indoor group performances may occur in places of worship 
as part of worship services led by religious leaders, with 
mitigations in place. 
Congregant singing continues to be strongly discouraged.  


Christmas  
Can there still be a Santa (distanced; 
indoor or outdoor); what about 
parades?  
 
 
Christmas markets – clarity – indoors? 
Outdoors? Only official farmers’ 
markets or are other vendors 
allowed? 
 
Are non-gathering outdoor events 
permitted such as vehicle parades 
where individuals do not leave their 
vehicle? 
 
Is there any guidance for Christmas 
day camps?  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 
Visits to Santa are permitted so long as people stay at least 2 
metres apart from Santa at all times. In the Edmonton and 
Calgary metropolitan areas, all individuals must mask in 
indoor settings (including Santa).  
 
Farmers’ markets, Christmas markets, and other pop-up 
markets are permitted indoors provided they follow the 
rules established for other retail settings (i.e., 25% capacity)  
 
 
Yes, these drive-in and drive-through events would be 
allowed to continue. People should only share their vehicle 
with people who are part of their household. 
 
 
Day camps are not prohibited under Order 38, 39, or 40, and 
can therefore can continue to operate. However, as per 
Order 39, they cannot participate in indoor group 
performance, sport, or physical activities.  Any outdoor 
performance, sport, or physical activities must be limited to 
10 people, physically distanced.   
 







 


 


Classification: Protected A 


With the Christmas season upon us 
can we still have a Santa outdoors? It 
will be set up as a drive by where 
people will not leave their vehicle.  
They will roll down their window and 
talk to Santa who will be beyond the 
social distance requirements. 
 


Outdoor drive-by Santa events will be permitted. People 
should only share their vehicle with people who are part of 
their household. 
 


Businesses/Capacity 
With the enhanced measures 
requiring some businesses to operate 
at 25% of fire code capacity, and some 
municipalities not presently having 
this information, and to my 
understanding creating a fire capacity 
for a business taking approximately 1 
hour; how are municipalities to assist 
these businesses when we don't have 
employee resources to generate all 
the business fire capacities required 
by the health measures? 
 
Does the 25% cap on occupancy of 
retail apply to a mall or the individual 
stores or both? 
 
 
 
 
Are the regulations for activities in Ag 
Society buildings the 25% as well or 
are they considered sports? 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 
Businesses that are unsure of their fire code occupancy can 
follow the guidance available here to calculate it: 
https://www.alberta.ca/assets/documents/covid-19-
restricted-capacity-and-occupant-load.pdf  
Municipalities should direct businesses and other venues to 
this link.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
In a mall, both the mall building and individual shops must 
calculate 25% of their occupancy, and should post this 
number at their respective entrances. Both the mall and the 
individual malls must limit how many people come onto 
their premises so that this doesn’t exceed the posted 
number.  
 
Unless they are explicitly listed in Appendix A of order 39 
(e.g. arenas, exhibitions, trade show facilities, sporting 
events or competitions, community halls), there are no 
restrictions on Agricultural Society buildings – they can 
remain open for public access. However, they must follow 
the General Relaunch Guidance. If they are in Edmonton and 
Calgary, workers and attendees must mask while in these 
buildings. However, all Ag Society events are subject to the 
restrictions on indoor group physical activity and 
performance – i.e. if they are a physical activity or a 
performance (including but not limited to rodeo, roping, 
stunt riding, bronco riding) they cannot occur indoors and 
must be limited to 10 people outdoors.  Livestock shows or 
competitions would be considered tradeshows and cannot 
take place. 
 
 
 



https://www.alberta.ca/assets/documents/covid-19-restricted-capacity-and-occupant-load.pdf

https://www.alberta.ca/assets/documents/covid-19-restricted-capacity-and-occupant-load.pdf

https://www.alberta.ca/assets/documents/covid-19-general-relaunch-guidance.pdf





 


 


Classification: Protected A 


Municipal administrative offices and 
other public buildings where public 
and essential services are provided - 
are these intended to reduce 
patronage to 25% of fire code 
occupancy? 
 
 


Unless they are explicitly listed in Appendix A of order 39, 
there are no restrictions on municipal administrative offices 
and other public buildings where public and essential 
services are provided (e.g. registry offices). However, they 
must follow the Guidance for Office Buildings and the 
General Relaunch Guidance. If they are in Edmonton and 
Calgary, workers and attendees must mask while in these 
offices.  
 
General Information 
The following measures apply to communities in Enhanced 
Status areas on the Relaunch Map: 


 Retail businesses may remain open with capacity 
limited to 25% of the occupancy set under the 
Alberta Fire Code 


 
Some entertainment and event services may remain open 
with capacity limited to 25% of the occupancy set under the 
Alberta Fire Code, including 


 Movie theatres, libraries, science centres 
 Museums and galleries 
 Casinos, offering slots only. Table games must be 


closed at this time. 
 Indoor entertainment centres including amusement 


parks, water parks, bingo halls and racing centres. 
 Indoor fitness, recreation, sports and physical 


activity centres, including dance and yoga studios, 
martial arts, gymnastics and private or public 
swimming pools. 


o Facilities can be open for individual studio 
time, training or exercise only. 


o There can be no group fitness, group classes, 
group training, team practices or games. 


o Instructors can use facility to broadcast 
virtual fitness classes from, but there can be 
no group class. 


 
All public health guidance and physical distancing 
requirements must be followed. 
 
Albertans and businesses are encouraged to limit in-person 
visits and use curbside pick up, delivery and online services 
instead. 
 
These reduced capacity limits to not apply to municipal 
administrative offices, or other government buildings. 
 



https://www.alberta.ca/assets/documents/covid-19-relaunch-guidance-office-buildings.pdf

https://www.alberta.ca/assets/documents/covid-19-general-relaunch-guidance.pdf





 


 


Classification: Protected A 


Businesses open by appointment only are not permitted to 
offer walk-in services. Appointments should be limited to 
one-on-one services. 


 Personal services such as hair salons and 
barbershops, esthetics, manicure, pedicure, body 
waxing and make-up, piercing and tattoo services, 


 Wellness services such as acupuncture, massage and 
reflexology 


 Professional services such as lawyers, mediators, 
accountants and photographers 


 Private one-on-one lessons (no private group 
lessons permitted) 


 Hotels, motels, hunting and fishing lodges 
These businesses must follow all current public health 
guidance for their sector and should consider virtual options 
where possible. 
 
Home-based businesses should follow the restrictions for 
the type of service they provide. 
 


Sport/Fitness/Activities 
Outdoor activities – ski hills, outdoor 
skating, cross-country skiing, etc; Any 
restrictions on ski centers? 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Further on outdoor activity are 
outdoor Rinks and ice ponds non-
structured activity is this considered 
social gathering? 


 
In Enhanced areas, outdoor group sport and fitness activities 
are limited to 10 participants, who must physically 
distanced. Skiing, skating, and cross-country skiing can 
continue under these restrictions. Ski centres should abide 
by the following restrictions. 


o Gondolas and chair lifts follow the same 
mitigation as currently required 


o Equipment rentals can be open if following a 
one-way flow of traffic with distancing. This 
would be equivalent to take-out or curb side 
pick up. Encourage online pre-rental wherever 
possible. Capacity restrictions apply 


o Gifts shops follow retail percent capacity 
restrictions.  


o Food and bar service is allowed but must follow 
restaurant restrictions. 


o Transport to/from ski hills on buses is allowed if 
following current mitigation set out in guidance 


 If recreating outdoors, we encourage Albertans to 
dress warmly and be prepared for a possibility that 
there may be no supporting services available. 


 
 
Individuals or households who independently go skating at 
rinks and ponds are not considered to be part of a social 
gathering. However, if a group of people attends a rink or 
pond together to skate, this is a social gathering. Therefore, 







 


 


Classification: Protected A 


 
 
 
 
 
 
When it comes to public swimming 
pools, what does it mean by individual 
time?  How many people can we have 
in the facility if it is lane swim or 
individual fitness swim?  
 
 
We have had positive cases show up 
from our public swimming pool - does 
chlorinated water kill the virus? 
 
 
 
Please clarify the effect of the new 
regulations on team sports? If the 
restrictions are no indoor social 
gathering in any setting, is hockey still 
allowed in a not enhanced zone or 
even taekwondo in a community hall 
allowed? 
 
 
 
Minor Hockey practices and games 
can continue in regions not under 
enhanced. Is this correct or does each 
Hockey association need to get AHS 
blessing. 
 
 
 
 
Please clarify 10 participant at 
outdoor events, programs, etc. Is it up 
to 10 or if you can provide activity 
over 10 if meeting distancing and 
safety protocols.   
 
 
 
 


groups coming to skate together cannot be more than 10 
people, unless they are all part of the same household. 
These 10 people should maintain physical distance from 
each other – and everyone else - at all times. Games like 
shinny or pick up hockey should not occur. 
 
People can attend the swimming pool at any time for solo 
swims, 1:1 lessons, or swimming with members of their 
household. However, group swim activities (e.g. training, 
practices, performances, competitions) are not allowed. 
Pools must limit occupancy to 25% of fire code occupancy, 
regardless of whether it is lane swim or open swim.  
 
The Alberta Swimming Pool Regulation compels operators of 
pools to maintain a certain chlorine residual. That residual is 
sufficient to inactivate the virus in water. The risk of droplet 
and surface contact transmission between patrons out of 
the water still remains.   
 
There can be no indoor team sport (including practices, 
training, competition, or games) in Enhanced areas of the 
province. Hockey practices cannot occur indoors and are 
limited to 10, physically distant participants, outdoors. 
Taekwondo and other sports classes or practices cannot 
occur indoors unless it is solo practice (e.g. people practicing 
on their own), or a one-on-one lesson between one 
instructor and one student. Community halls are closed to 
the public, except for very specific purposes. 
 
Minor Hockey practices and games can continue in regions 
not under “Enhanced” status However, if an area goes to 
“Enhanced” and then back to “Open” status, the restrictions 
must remain in place. Also, travel from “Enhanced” areas to  
“Open” areas to practice and play sports is strongly 
discouraged. Hockey associations are not required to get 
AHS confirmation.  
 
 
The maximum number of people that can participate in 
outdoor physical activity is 10, with physical distancing..   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 







 


 


Classification: Protected A 


if you are in an enhanced zone can 
you rent your arena to a family group? 
or must we close the arena? 
 
 
 
 
So under businesses and services it 
says no amateur sports, but Dr. 
Hinshaw just said arenas may open 
with 25% capacity, could that not 
include an amateur sport? 
 
Will the specific associations i.e. 
Hockey Alberta and Skate Canada be 
notified of their new restrictions 
under enhanced public health 
measures? 
 
Can ice rinks, bowling alleys, and 
curling rinks offer one on one 
coaching at their facilities under these 
new restrictions? 
 
What is the suggestion for other 
outdoor activities such as sledding 
hills, outdoor skating, etc? It may be 
hard to limit that to 10 with multiple 
families looking to get out at the same 
time for the same activity 
 
 
Are non-sport activities like cadets, 
scouts, art clubs, language clubs, etc. 
restricted or can they operate under 
reduced capacity.  
Can arts and crafts sessions continue 
with limited numbers? the arts 
question was not fully understood.  
they are doing arts and crafts not 
performance arts.  can a stained glass 
class continue? 


An arena operator could rent their facility to a group for 
uses that are not restricted in accordance with current 
guidelines.  For example, business meetings.  Arenas are not 
required to be closed, and can remain open for individual or 
household practice and play, as long as they do not exceed 
25% capacity 
 
Arenas and other venues can be open with 25% of fire code 
occupancy, for individual practice and play only. Indoor 
group or team sport activities (including amateur sport) 
must stop at this time in all “Enhanced Areas”.   
 
 
Individual groups and associations will not be individually 
notified of the restriction on their activities, unless it is part 
of ongoing correspondence between the association and the 
Government of Alberta. 
 
 
One-on-one coaching is permitted in indoor settings in 
“Enhanced” regions. Mitigations should be used 
 
 
 
If a group of people goes sledding together (e.g. friends, 
family), their number must be less than 10, so that social 
interactions are limited to a small group of people. However, 
multiple separate groups of up to 10 people each may sled 
or skate on the same hill or rink, so long as they maintain 
physical distance from one another.  
 
 
These clubs and groups are not prohibited from operating, 
so long as they take place in a business or venue that is 
allowed to be open to the public. However, because of the 
social nature of these gatherings, organizers are strongly 
encouraged to consider postponing them, limiting the size of 
the groups, or moving them online. These groups and 
classes are subject to all applicable health orders, guidance, 
and measures (including physical distancing, regular hand 
hygiene, and masking in the Edmonton and Calgary 
metropolitan areas) 


Exemptions – how does one apply for 
an exemption to the orders for sports? 
 


Exemption process for professional sports organizations 
At this time, only a very limited number of professional 
sports organizations are being exempted from this 
requirement.  


 Exemptions may be considered for outfits and 
organizations that can demonstrate adherence to 







 


 


Classification: Protected A 


the guidance for professional sporting events (PDF, 
405 KB). Criteria includes: 


o Enforcing a mandatory 14-day “quarantine-
in” procedure before any practice or play 
occurs and using a bubble model for the 
duration of the event. 


o Access to dedicated facilities and 
transportation that are not open to the 
general public. 


o Conducting daily health checks on all 
members of the team, and private testing 
team members upon entry into the bubble 
and every five days throughout events. 


o Conducting a comprehensive risk 
assessment plan and implementing risk 
mitigation and controls before play begins. 


 To request an exemption, organizations must 
develop a comprehensive implementation plan to 
show how they will implement the Guidance for 
Professional Sporting Events, and send it 
to BizConnect@gov.ab.ca. 


 


 



https://www.alberta.ca/assets/documents/covid-19-relaunch-guidance-professional-sporting-events.pdf

mailto:BizConnect@gov.ab.ca






 


Municipal Governance during the COVID-19 Outbreak 
©2020 Government of Alberta | Published November 27, 2020 | Page 1 


Municipal Governance 
During the COVID-19 Pandemic 
Frequently Asked Questions – November 27, 2020  
 


On November 24, 2020, Premier Jason Kenney 


announced that the government has declared a 


State of Public Health Emergency in response to the 


ever-evolving COVID-19 pandemic. He announced 


several new mandatory public health measures in 


communities across Alberta to protect the health 


system and slow the spread of COVID-19 based on 


the Chief Medical Officer of Health’s 


recommendations. I encourage you to review them 


on Alberta.ca. 


 


While we continue down the road to recovery 


together, Alberta Municipal Affairs remains 


committed to issuing regular updates that address 


frequently asked questions as well as provide 


information on new information or resources as they 


become available. 


 


If you would like a specific question answered in an 


upcoming update, please email your request to 


ma.lgsmail@gov.ab.ca.    


 


 


Council Meetings 
Can municipal councils still meet in person and 


meet the Chief Medical Officer of Health’s 


recommendations for physical/social 


distancing? 


 


YES. The Public Meeting Procedures (COVID-19 


Suppression) Regulation enables municipalities to 


follow the Chief Medical Officer of Health’s 


recommendations for physical/social distancing by 


conducting meetings electronically. While Municipal 


Affairs encourages councils to consider electronic 


meetings as a way to ensure compliance with the 


public health orders regarding public gatherings, the 


decision on how to conduct meetings remains at the 


discretion of the council, committee or commission. 


 


Can meetings be held entirely by electronic 


means?  


 


YES. During the COVID-19 health emergency, when 


the MGA requires a council, board or commission to 


hold a meeting, an electronic meeting (e.g., live-


stream, teleconference, etc.) meets that requirement 


as long as: 


 notice of the electronic meeting is provided and 


states the electronic means being used and 


gives the information necessary for the public to 


access the meeting; 


 the public is able to hear the meeting as it is 


occurring; 


 eligible parties can send submissions before 


and during the meeting by email or any other 


method that the council, board or commission 


considers appropriate; and 


 


Municipal Affairs Updates 


Previous COVID-19 updates are available at 


www.alberta.ca/municipal-government-


resources.aspx 


Public Libraries Resources 


Resources are available at 


https://www.alberta.ca/public-library-


services.aspx 



https://www.alberta.ca/enhanced-public-health-measures.aspx

mailto:ma.lgsmail@gov.ab.ca.

https://www.qp.alberta.ca/1266.cfm?page=2020_050.cfm&leg_type=Regs&isbncln=9780779816910

https://www.qp.alberta.ca/1266.cfm?page=2020_050.cfm&leg_type=Regs&isbncln=9780779816910

http://www.alberta.ca/municipal-government-resources.aspx

http://www.alberta.ca/municipal-government-resources.aspx

https://www.alberta.ca/public-library-services.aspx

https://www.alberta.ca/public-library-services.aspx





 


Municipal Governance during the COVID-19 Outbreak 
©2020 Government of Alberta | Published November 27, 2020 | Page 2 


 the following people attend by electronic means: 


o CAO or designated officer; 


o For a commission, growth management 


board or subdivision and development 


appeal board, the chair or vice-chair;  


o For a composite or a local assessment 


review board, the presiding officer. 


 


Can a member of the public be required to wear 


a mask in order to attend a council meeting? 


 


Masks are only mandatory for municipalities 


included in the “enhanced areas” or in any other 


municipalities excluded from “enhanced areas” if 


there is a municipal face covering bylaw that 


requires masks to be worn within public buildings. 


 


Enhanced Restrictions 
 


What restrictions on activities apply for all of 


Alberta? 


 


Throughout all of Alberta, no indoor social 


gatherings are permitted, and outdoor social 


gatherings are restricted to 10 people. Wedding and 


funeral services are restricted to 10 people, and no 


receptions are permitted. Festivals and other events 


are prohibited, and working from home 


arrangements should be considered whenever 


possible. 


 


What additional restrictions apply only to 


municipalities that fall within an “enhanced” 


status area? 


 


Places of worship are restricted to a maximum of 1/3 


of attendance capacity, and masks must be worn 


while inside places of worship.  


 


Banquet halls, conference centres, trade shows, 


auditoria, concert venues, non-approved/licensed 


markets, community centres, children’s play places 


or indoor playgrounds, and all levels of sport must 


be closed (exemptions may be considered for sport 


activities). This would mean that council meetings 


cannot be relocated into local banquet halls. 


Museums, galleries, libraries, indoor entertainment 


centres and indoor fitness facilities are restricted to 


25% of the occupancy set by the Alberta Fire Code. 


Further information on business restrictions can be 


found on Alberta.ca. 


 


What municipalities do the mandatory masking 


requirements apply to? 


 


Mandatory masking applies in the following 
communities: 


 Calgary, Airdrie, Chestermere, Cochrane, 
Foothills County, High River, Okotoks, 
Rockyview County, and surrounding villages and 
businesses  


 Edmonton, Beaumont, Devon, Evansburg, Fort 
Saskatchewan, Gibbons, Leduc, Leduc County, 
Morinville, Parkland County, St. Albert, Spruce 
Grove, Stony Plain, Strathcona County, 
Sturgeon County, Thorsby, and surrounding 
villages and businesses 


 
A complete list of all municipalities falling within the 
enhanced areas can be found on Alberta.ca. 


 


Enforcement of Health Orders 
 


Is the province working on standardizing what is 


subject to penalties to ensure there is clarity and 


consistency between enforcement bodies for 


enforcement under the Public Health Act? 


 


YES. Alberta Justice and Solicitor General, in 


collaboration with Alberta Health and Alberta Health 


Services, have been in constant contact with 


Alberta’s police services through the Alberta 


Association of Chiefs of Police, and directly with 


authorized employers of community peace officers 


(municipalities) regarding enforcement of Alberta’s 


Chief Medical Officer of Health’s orders to ensure a 


clear and constant message around the 


enforcement of these orders is being provided. 


 


 


 


 


 


 



https://www.alberta.ca/enhanced-public-health-measures.aspx

https://www.alberta.ca/maps/covid-19-status-map.htm





 


Municipal Governance during the COVID-19 Outbreak 
©2020 Government of Alberta | Published November 27, 2020 | Page 3 


Can community peace officers enforce the 


recommendations of the Chief Medical Officer of 


Health? 


 


YES. Community Peace Officer Level 1s have been 


provided authority to enforce the Chief Medical 


Officer of Health’s Orders issued under the Public 


Health Act. This authority was granted through a 


Ministerial Order in accordance with section 13 of 


the Peace Officer Act. 


 


Can municipal bylaw enforcement officers who 


are not designated as community peace officers 


enforce the recommendations of the Chief 


Medical Officer of Health? 


 


NO. Municipal bylaw officers can only enforce 


municipal bylaws. 


 


General Information 
 


Can municipalities choose to keep certain 


municipally controlled properties closed even if 


they are allowed to be open under the provincial 


approach? 


 


YES. The decision to open facilities remains a local 


council decision. Municipalities and the public must 


continue to put safety first while gradually reopening 


businesses, resuming activities and getting people 


back to work. 


 


Should municipalities be encouraging 


employees to work from home?   


 


YES. If there is a concern about exposure to 


COVID-19, staff should be encouraged and 


supported in remote work arrangements where 


possible and feasible. 


Can a municipality declare a pandemic State of 


Local Emergency (SOLE), create local 


enforceable restrictions and provide for the 


staged opening of businesses and facilities? 


 


YES. If a municipality determines that an emergency 


exists in the municipal boundaries that requires 


coordination or action to protect the safety, health 


and welfare of people, a pandemic SOLE can be 


declared and municipalities can then restrict travel 


into, out of, and within the municipality, and close 


municipal properties. They can also make plans for 


repurposing public and private facilities such as 


community centres or hotels to house people with 


COVID-19 symptoms to self-isolate. The Emergency 


Management Act does not include powers to close a 


business, or reduce the capacity of businesses 


operating in the municipality. 


 


Can a municipality maintain physical gathering 


restrictions by declaring a local pandemic SOLE 


under the recent amendments to the Emergency 


Management Act (EMA)? 


 


NO. If a municipality determines that an emergency 


exists in their boundaries that requires action to 


protect the safety, health and welfare of people, a 


SOLE can be declared; however, municipal powers 


are specifically identified in the EMA and restrictions 


on gatherings and social distancing are not included 


within those municipal powers 


 


Additional Resources 
 


The Alberta Urban Municipalities Association and 


Rural Municipalities of Alberta continue to be a 


valuable resource for municipalities. A COVID-19 


response hub is accessible via 


https://rmalberta.com/about/covid-19-response-hub/.   


 


The Federation of Canadian Municipalities also has 


a list of links and resources for municipalities. 


https://fcm.ca/en/resources/covid-19-resources-


municipalities. 


Municipal Advisory Services 


If you have further questions, please call:    


780-427-2225 or toll-free by first dialing  


310-0000 or email ma.lgsmail@gov.ab.ca 



https://rmalberta.com/about/covid-19-response-hub/

https://fcm.ca/en/resources/covid-19-resources-municipalities

https://fcm.ca/en/resources/covid-19-resources-municipalities






 


Municipal Governance during the COVID-19 Outbreak 
©2020 Government of Alberta | Published December 4, 2020 | Page 1 


Municipal Governance 
During the COVID-19 Pandemic 
Frequently Asked Questions – December 4, 2020  
 


On November 24, 2020, the Government of Alberta 


declared a State of Public Health Emergency and 


announced several new mandatory public health 


measures to protect the health system and slow the 


spread of COVID-19, based on recommendations 


from the Chief Medical Officer of Health. These 


measures can be reviewed on Alberta.ca. 


 


While all levels of government continue to navigate 


the ever-evolving COVID-19 pandemic together to 


bend the curve, Municipal Affairs remains committed 


to issuing regular updates to address frequently 


asked questions as well as provide new information 


or resources as they become available. If you would 


like a specific issue addressed in an upcoming 


update, please email your request to 


ma.lgsmail@gov.ab.ca. 


  


Enhanced Status  
 


Is the Provincial Relaunch Status Map revisited 


so municipalities can be moved on and off the 


enhanced status list as cases in the area 


increase or decrease? 


 


YES. Communities can enter the enhanced category 


while the measures are in place and then must 


adhere to the more stringent public health measures 
to protect the health system and reduce the rising 


number of COVID-19 cases. Communities that are 


on the enhanced status list at any time on or after 


November 27 must keep all measures in effect until 


at least December 15. Municipalities should continue 


to monitor the status of their region online and can 


sign up to be notified if their region moves up to 


‘watch’ or ‘enhanced’ status.  


 


Council Meetings 
 


Can councils in both areas with high case 


counts (Enhanced Areas) and in areas with lower 


cases (Open Areas) continue meeting in public?  


 


YES. All councils may continue to meet in public if 


they can adhere to social distancing guidelines and 


ensure measures are in place to prevent the 


transmission of COVID-19. The Public Meeting 


Procedures (COVID-19 Suppression) Regulation 


also remains in effect and enables municipalities to 


conduct meetings electronically. While electronic 


meetings are encouraged as a way to ensure 


compliance with the public health orders regarding 


public gatherings, the decision on how to conduct 


meetings remains at the discretion of the council, 


committee or commission. 


 


Can councils located outside enhanced areas 


hold their meetings in a community centre? 


 


YES. To clarify information provided December 1, 


2020 from Alberta Health Operations, councils 


outside of enhanced areas can still hold meetings in 


centres if they can adhere to social distancing 


guidelines. Holding council meetings in community 


centres within enhanced areas remains restricted at 


this time. 


Municipal Affairs Updates 


Previous COVID-19 updates are available 


online at: www.alberta.ca/municipal-


government-resources.aspx 



https://www.alberta.ca/enhanced-public-health-measures.aspx

file://///GOA/SHARED/MA/MSL_MCS_MCB/_Working/General/COVID19/FactSheets/COVID%20Enhanced%20Nov%20-/ma.lgsmail@gov.ab.ca

https://www.alberta.ca/maps/covid-19-status-map.htm

https://www.alberta.ca/maps/covid-19-status-map.htm

https://www.alberta.ca/covid-19-status-notification.aspx

https://www.qp.alberta.ca/1266.cfm?page=2020_050.cfm&leg_type=Regs&isbncln=9780779816910

https://www.qp.alberta.ca/1266.cfm?page=2020_050.cfm&leg_type=Regs&isbncln=9780779816910

http://www.alberta.ca/municipal-government-resources.aspx

http://www.alberta.ca/municipal-government-resources.aspx

http://www.alberta.ca/municipal-government-resources.aspx





 


Municipal Governance during the COVID-19 Outbreak 
©2020 Government of Alberta | Published December 4, 2020 | Page 2 


Can the public be required to wear masks in 


order to attend a council meeting? 


 


YES. Masks are only required to be worn for indoor 


public meetings in areas specified in Part 4 of 


CMOH Order 38-2020 or in any other municipality 


that has a municipal face covering bylaw that 


requires masks to be worn in public buildings. For 


communities specified in Order 38-2020, masks 


should be worn at all times during a council meeting. 


Where councils have elected to make masks 


mandatory in public spaces, the requirements are at 


the discretion of council and should be outlined in 


each individual municipal face covering bylaw.   


 


Can a face covering bylaw be passed so that it 


comes into effect upon a condition, instead of 


the date of passage? 


 


YES. A bylaw comes into effect on the day it 


receives third and final reading and is signed by the 


chief elected official and a designated officer. A 


bylaw may specify a future date for the bylaw to 


come into effect, but it cannot apply retroactively. 


A bylaw may contain provisions that can "trigger" the 


bylaw's effective date, such as a specified number of 


COVID-19 cases within the municipality or the region 


being put into enhanced status. However, a bylaw 


cannot contain provisions allowing council to enact 


or repeal the bylaw by resolution, as this is contrary 


to section 191(2) of the Municipal Government Act 


(MGA). 


 


 


Travel Restrictions 
 


Are there restrictions in place to prevent 


residents of communities in enhanced areas 


from travelling into other regions to use their 


municipal facilities? 


 


NO. Travel within or outside of Alberta is not 


restricted at this time; however, non-essential travel 


is not recommended. The Chief Medical Officer of 


Health encourages municipalities to take measures 


to limit access to municipal facilities by teams and 


groups from outside their areas. 


 


Elections 
 


With the restrictions for areas with enhanced 


measures and the 2021 election nomination 


period beginning January 1, 2021, are candidates 


able to submit their nominations while still 


adhering to the social distancing requirements? 


 


YES. Section 28 of the Local Authorities Election Act 


(LAEA) states that “nominations shall be submitted 


at the local jurisdiction office at any time during the 


nomination period”. Ultimately, it is the responsibility 


of the candidate to ensure their nomination 


requirements are complete in all aspects, including 


the inclusion of a deposit if a municipality has a 


bylaw requiring deposits. In addition to being 


delivered in person, the specific requirement of 


section 28 to submit nomination forms can be met 


by having forms mailed or delivered by courier. This 


could pose a risk for delivery guarantee that the 


candidate should be aware of as it is the 


responsibility of the candidate to meet the 


requirements of the LAEA and have information 


submitted to the local jurisdiction office by the 


deadline on nomination day. 


Alberta Biz Connect 
Alberta Biz Connect provides workplace 


guidance and support to businesses and 


non-profits. The online tool also provides 


sector-specific guidelines to ensure 


businesses can reopen safely during the 


COVID-19 pandemic. Businesses with 


questions regarding the relaunch can email 


the Biz Connect team. Common questions 


are also posted online.  


Public Libraries Resources 


Resources are available at: 


https://www.alberta.ca/public-library-


services.aspx 



https://open.alberta.ca/dataset/04afb7ea-dde7-4255-a16f-744f378fe0a0/resource/d9ee39d8-7446-4d61-9714-f3aa84202b3b/download/health-cmoh-record-of-decision-cmoh-order-38-2020.pdf

https://open.alberta.ca/dataset/04afb7ea-dde7-4255-a16f-744f378fe0a0/resource/d9ee39d8-7446-4d61-9714-f3aa84202b3b/download/health-cmoh-record-of-decision-cmoh-order-38-2020.pdf

mailto:bizconnect@gov.ab.ca

mailto:bizconnect@gov.ab.ca

https://www.alberta.ca/biz-connect.aspx?utm_source=google&utm_medium=sem&utm_campaign=Covid19&utm_term=GuidanceDocuments&utm_content=v1&gclid=EAIaIQobChMIp_DYov706QIVnD6tBh2HwApjEAAYASAAEgLNvfD_BwE#guidance

https://www.alberta.ca/public-library-services.aspx

https://www.alberta.ca/public-library-services.aspx





 


Municipal Governance during the COVID-19 Outbreak 
©2020 Government of Alberta | Published December 4, 2020 | Page 3 


Municipal Operations 
 


Can our municipal administrative offices and 


other public buildings where we provide public 


and essential services remain open? 


 


YES. Unless they are explicitly listed in Appendix A 


of Order 39, there are no restrictions in place. 


Municipalities must follow the Guidance for Office 


Buildings and General Relaunch Guidance. Within 


the enhanced areas, workers must wear a mask 


unless working alone in an office or an appropriate 


barrier is in place. Closing municipal offices and 


public buildings to protect the health and welfare of 


employees and the public, or for staffing and 


financial reasons remains at the discretion of 


individual municipalities.  


 


Many municipal facilities have recreation 


centres, fitness centres, libraries and meeting 


space all under one roof. Do the stronger health 


measures impact capacity in these multi-use 


facilities?   


 


YES. In buildings (e.g., rec centres) that house 


multiple uses, the municipality must ensure a 


process to limit total occupancy to 25 per cent of the 


fire code limit for that location and ensure the 


number of attendees does not exceed this number. 


Individual venues within the larger facility must also 


follow the applicable restrictions. These guidelines 


also apply to local businesses operating within larger 


buildings such as business centres and malls. In 


communities under an enhanced status, some 


businesses will be restricted to appointment only 


and must follow all public health guidance in place. 


Individual operators should review Order 39, 


Appendix A, and the overview of enhanced 


restrictions to determine the operating restrictions for 


each venue.  


 


Is there guidance documentation available for 


municipalities and local businesses regarding 


reduced capacity and occupancy loads, as well 


as approximating restricted capacity? 


 


YES. Information has been posted online, including 


additional information on how to approximate 


restricted capacity if municipalities are unsure of 


current occupant loads, or have been unable to 


locate them. 


 


Are municipal outdoor rinks permitted to remain 


open at this time? 


 


YES. Skating is permitted with 


members from individual households if 


physical distancing is maintained at all 


times. If a group of people attend a rink together to 


skate, this is a social gathering, therefore, groups 


cannot be more than ten people unless from the 


same household. Games like shinny or pick up 


hockey should not occur. 


 


Are there any uses for which community centres 


in enhanced areas can remain open? 


 


YES. Community centres in enhanced areas can 


remain open to the public if they are being used to 


provide health care services or child care services, 


shelter vulnerable persons, for election purposes 


and related activities, to undertake jury selections, 


for indoor markets, or as a place of worship. 


 


Additional Resources 
The Alberta Urban Municipalities Association 


(AUMA) and Rural Municipalities of Alberta (RMA) 


continue to be a valuable resource for municipalities.  


 


RMA’s COVID-19 response hub is available at: 


https://rmalberta.com/about/covid-19-response-hub/ 


 


AUMA’s updated guide is available at: 


https://auma.ca/covid19 


 


The Federation of Canadian Municipalities also has 


a list of links and resources for municipalities 


available at: https://fcm.ca/en/resources/covid-19-


resources-municipalities 



https://open.alberta.ca/publications/cmoh-order-39-2020

https://www.alberta.ca/assets/documents/covid-19-relaunch-guidance-office-buildings.pdf

https://www.alberta.ca/assets/documents/covid-19-relaunch-guidance-office-buildings.pdf

https://www.alberta.ca/assets/documents/covid-19-general-relaunch-guidance.pdf

https://open.alberta.ca/publications/cmoh-order-39-2020

https://www.alberta.ca/enhanced-public-health-measures.aspx

https://www.alberta.ca/assets/documents/covid-19-restricted-capacity-and-occupant-load.pdf

https://rmalberta.com/about/covid-19-response-hub/

https://auma.ca/covid19

https://fcm.ca/en/resources/covid-19-resources-municipalities

https://fcm.ca/en/resources/covid-19-resources-municipalities






MINUTES OF THE CARDSTON COUNTY EMERGENCY SERVICES AUTHORITY MEETING HELD DECEMBER 3, 
2020 AT THE CARDSTON COUNTY EMERGENCY SERVICES AUTHORITY BUILDING  
 
Board Members Present:    
Royce Leavitt – Cardston County      Gerry Selk – Town of Cardston     
Tim Court – Town of Cardston        Tom Nish – Cardston County  
Don Shideler – Village of Hill Spring           
  
Others Present:  
Danny Melvin – Fire Chief        Suzanne Pierson – Secretary/Treasurer 
Spencer Olsen – Deputy Fire Chief                                
    
Commenced at 5:00 p.m.  
  
Gerry Selk in the chair.                                                              
  
Opening Prayer: Tom Nish 
  
AGENDA  
  
Royce Leavitt moved to approve the agenda.                     Carried  
  
MINUTES  


The minutes of the November 5, 2020, meeting was discussed.    


Tom Nish moved to accept the minutes of the November 5, 2020 meeting.             Carried  
  
BUSINESS ARISING FROM THE MINUTES 
 
The board inquired as to whether the concerns with the multiple dwelling house has been resolved. Danny 
Melvin is working with the landowner. 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
  
Danny Melvin reported that the November Emergency Services statistics are as follows: 5 False Alarms; 1 
MVC; 1 MFR, 1 Structure Fire; and 1 Miscellaneous. 
 
Danny Melvin is working on gathering sample False Alarm Policy’s as false alarms are on the rise throughout 
the Province. 
 
Danny Melvin advised that grant funding from AHS was applied for and no grant funding was received. 
 
Danny Melvin reported that all the SEBA’s have been tested for Glenwood and Cardston. 
 







MINUTES CCES MEETING DECEMBER 3, 2020 
 


2 
 


Danny Melvin advised that more fire training has occurred compliments of Volker Stevin.  The cost of 
training manuals went through the Authorities budget. 
 
Danny Melvin reported that WCB has decreased from 1.57 to 1.39 for every $100 spent for the 2021 year. 
 
Danny Melvin advised that the Authority has requested an increase from AHS in the lease agreement that 
will be renewed in January 2021. 
 
Spencer Olsen arrived at 5:11 p.m. 
 
Danny Melvin reported that he has spoken with Jeff Shaw, CAO of the Town of Cardston, regarding the 
addition to the Fire Hall.  Jeff Shaw advised that once another project is complete, they will begin work.  
 
Danny Melvin advised that 12 sets of fire gear will expire in 2021 at approximately 4,000/set for 
Glenwood/Hill Spring.  He has notified the communities involved as this is a big budget item. 
 
Danny Melvin reported that the Festival of Lights went well, and the Authority received two thank you 
cards. 
 
Tom Nish moved to approve Danny Melvin’s report.                      Carried  
 
Danny Melvin presented the 2021 Budget for the board to review.   
 
20-05 Tim Court moved to approve the 2021 Budget as presented.      Carried 
 
Royce Leavitt moved to go in-camera 5:21 p.m. 
Tim Court moved to go out-of-camera 5:27 p.m. 
 
20-06 Royce Leavitt moved to sign a three-year contract with Danny Melvin as the Fire Chief and  


increase the Fire Chief and the Secretary wage by 5% for the first year and a cost-of-living 
increase for the next two years.         Carried 


 
ADJOURNMENT  


Tim Court moved to adjourn.                     Carried  


Adjournment at 5:31 p.m.  


Next board meeting is scheduled for Thursday, January 7, 2020 at 5:00 p.m. at the Cardston County 
Emergency Services Building.    


  


              
Chairman   





		MINUTES OF THE CARDSTON COUNTY EMERGENCY SERVICES AUTHORITY MEETING HELD DECEMBER 3, 2020 AT THE CARDSTON COUNTY EMERGENCY SERVICES AUTHORITY BUILDING

		MINUTES

		BUSINESS ARISING FROM THE MINUTES

		NEW BUSINESS

		ADJOURNMENT















OLDMAN RTVER REGI)NAL SERVICES C1MMISSI1N


EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES
November L2, 2O2O; 6:00 pm


ORRSC Conference Room (3105 - 16 Avenue North, tethbridge)


Attenda nce:


Executive Committee:
Gordon Wolstenholme, Chalrman
Jim Bester, Vice Chair
Don Anderberg, Virtually
Jennifer Crowson, Virtually
Doug MacPherson, Virtually
Margaret Plumtree, Virtually
lan Sundquist, Virtually


5taff:


Chairman Wolstenholme called the meeting to order, the time being 6:15 pm.


1. Approval of Agenda


Moved by: Jim Bester


CARRIED


2. Approval of Minutes


Moved by: Doug MacPherson


THAT the Executive Committee approve the October 8, 2020 Executive Committee Meeting
Minutes, as presented.


CARRIED


3. Business Arising from the Minutes


None


2020 ORRSC Executive Committee Meeting Minutes - Page 33
November 12, 2020


The Executive Committee Meeting of the Oldman River Regional Services Commission was held on
Thursday, November 72,2O2O, at 6:00 pm, in the Conference Room of the ORRSC Administration
Building, as well as virtually via Go To Meeting.


Lenze Kuiper, Director
Tara Cryderman, Executive Assistant


THAT the Executive Committee approve the November 12, 2020 Executive Committee Meeting
Agenda, as presented.







4. New Business


a Draft 2021 Budget


At the October meeting, the Executive Committee requested further information from
Administration regarding Fleet Management and Computer software.


With regards to Fleet Management, it was determined that owning a fleet is more
economical and efficient than paying mileage for using a personal vehicle. There is an
estimated S12,000 - 513,000 savings per year in maintaining a fleet versus paying
mileage. This also benefits the employees, as there is no additional expense of increased
insurance on personalvehicles. To keep the cost savings in place, the future purchase of
vehicles will be as efficient and economical as possible.


With regards to Computer Software, there is no real cost savings to switch software
programs, and the most efficient practice is to stay with the current software. The
budgeted projection for software was discussed. There will be a cost savings in the near
future, when the GIS platform is fully transferred to the new program. Currently, while
municipalities are familiarizing themselves with the new program, the previous platform
is still functioning, thus the monthly double charge. Once all municipalities are
comfortable and utilizing the new platform, the previous platform will be deleted.


Director Lenze Kuiper spoke to the proposed 2027 Draft Budget, and that is was the
hardest budget he's ever had to prepare.


Two budgets were presented; one with a 1% fee increase, the other with a 5% fee
increase. Currently, both proposals show a deficit.


The following was mentioned:


o The County of Newell and the Town of Coaldale have removed themselves from
the membership


o The annual allocations to Reserve Funds will not occur in 2021
o The Town of lnnisfail no longer receives GIS Services, however, the Town of


Coaldale will still receive GIS Services, at an increased fee, as they no longer
receive the membership subsidization


o There is no salary increase projected for 2021, as well as the reduction of 2 FTE
positions, which will not be filled


. Renovations will not occur in 2021
o The Fixed Assets expenses could be removed from the budget and, should these


items be necessary tn 2021,, Reserves could be utilized to cover the costs


There was a question regarding the increase to the pension contributions. There is a


forecasted increase to LAPP ol 1%.


There was a question regarding the dollar variance for the permanent Employee
amount


2020 ORRSC Executive Committee Meeting Minutes - Page 34
November 12,2020







Two vacant positions will not be filled, however, this amount is a combination of several
factors.
ACTION: Further exolan ation of this dollar variance was reouested.


Additional revenue sources include the possibility of engaging G15 Services with a couple
municipalities, as well as an application to the Community Partnering Grant.


2Yo increase to fees and to cut exoenses where oossible. and present the adiusted


Assessment Review Board services were discussed. While this is a valuable service to the
municipalities, it is not a revenue generating service. This service is not a planning nor a


land use service. The issue is the amount of training required, and the constant turnover
of trained individuals, both at ORRSC and at the municipality. Also, the recent change to
only allow one Councillor to sit on the ARB board, increases the difficulty. Whether or
not to continue to provide this service was discussed. The increase to the fee for this
service, to accurately reflect the true cost was mentioned. The restrictions seem to be a
Red Tape Issue - perhaps the municipalities need to lobby the Red Tape Reduction
Minister, and the Alberta Government, and bring this to their attention. The capping of
Complaint Fees, the limitation of Councillors on the board, the cost of training, the
seasonal nature of this service and the inability of smaller municipalities to provide this
service to their residents are all significant red tape restrictions.


ACTIO N: Administration was direct ed to reDare a seDarate business Dlan and budsetD


Moved by: Don Anderberg


THAT Administration amend the Draft 2021 Budget as discussed and directed, and that a


Special Executive Committee meeting be scheduled for continued discussion of the
2021. Budget.


CARRIED


fhe 2027 Membership Fees, at the proposed !% and 5% increase were discussed.


Regardless of the increase, justification will be needed to explain the increase


The monetary increase is not as significant as the percentage increase. These rates are
an indication of how well the municipality is doing as a community. tf the equalized
assessment is increasing, the community is typically growing, taxes are typically
increasing, and the community is typically utilizing the services of ORRSC more.


ACTION: The consensus from the Committee was to prepare a budget with a


budget to the Committee at a Special Committee Meeting.


for the ARB services for further consideration.


ACTION: Add a column showing the Eoualized Assessment from 2019. which will
showcase the difference between 2019 and 2020.


2020 ORRSC Executive Committee Meeting Minutes - page 35
November 12, 2020







b. Subdivision Activity 2020


The subdivision activities for October 2020 were reviewed


There has been a total of 5200,702.50 in Subdivision Fees collected. This is almost a


545,000 decrease from this time last year.


There are also 18 less subdivision applications than this time last year.


Fee For Service


The Fees for Service are virtually unchanged from those reported from last month


Town of Coaldale


As of January 1, 2020, the Town of Coaldale will no longer be a member of ORRSC


The transitional plan was explained.


Annual Organizational Board of Directors Meeting


The Annual Organizational Board of Directors Meeting is scheduled for December 3,2020


Moved by: DouB MacPherson


THAT the Annual Organizational Board of Directors Meeting be postponed until
Thursday, .lanuary 7 ,ZOZL, at7:OO pm, a nd that this meeting be held virtually.


CARRIED


5 Accounts


Office Accounts


i. Monthly Office Accounts, September 2020


Moved by: Don Anderberg


THAT the Executive Committee approve the Office Accounts for October 2020,
for the amount of 5L7,876.76.


CARRIED


ii. Payments and Credits forAugust 2020


Moved by: Jim Bester


THAT the Executive Committee approve the Payments and Credits for August
2020.


c


d


e


a


2020 ORRSC Executive Committee Meeting Minutes - page 36
November 12,2020







CARRIED


b. Financial Statements


(i) Balance Sheet as of September 30, 2020


Moved by: Jennifer Crowson


THAT the Executive Committee approve the Balance Sheet as of
September 30, 2020.


CARRIED


(ii) Comparative lncome Statement - Actual to september 30, 2020


Moved by: lan Sundquist


THAT the Executive Committee approve the Comparative lncome Statement -


Actual to September 30, 2020.
CARRIED


(iii) Consolidated Statement - Statement Date September 30,2020


Moved by: Doug MacPherson


THAT the Executive Committee approve the Consolidated Statement -


Statement Date September 30, 2020.
CARRIED


6. Director's Report


The Director provided an update on his activities since the last Executive Committee Meeting


. Assessment Review Board Hearings are being finalized


. Some planners are attending Council meetings in person, some virtually


. lf a Council meeting is cancelled, please let the planner know


7


Members of the Executive Committee provided updates on their activities, and information
regarding their Municipa lities:


Doug MacPherson:
. The daycare is scheduled for completion in Oecember 2020
o The Town Office is scheduled for completion in February 2021


Margaret Plumtree:
o Covid, and its restrictions, are challenging the municipality
o The arena will be closed for 2 weeks, following the new restrictions announced today


Executive Report


2020 ORRSC Executive Committee Meeting Minutes - Page 37


November 12, 2020







Don Anderberg:
. Finalizing the Area Structure Plan for the NE lndustrial Area; the Public Hearing is


scheduled for December
. lncrease in business interest in the area
. Over 400 business licenses have been issued for 2020, which is an increase from 2019
o The real estate market seems to be favourable
o Currently have 4 cases of Covid


lan Sundquist:
. Solar panel project is generating jobs in the area
o 3 new businesses are starting at the airport


Jennifer Crowson:
. Budget deliberations have begun
o Covid, and its restrictions, are challenging the municipality


Jim Bester:
o Covid, and its restrictions, are challenging the municipality


Gordon Wolstenholme:
. Construction on the pool continues


8. Adjournment


Following all discussions, Chair Gordon Wolstenholme adjourned the meeting, the time being


7:35 pm.


CHAIR


2020 ORRSC Executive Committee Meeting Minutes - PaBe 38


November 12, 2020


74,{1,}'








VILLAGE OF GLENWOOD 
November 12, 2020 Minutes 


 
The Regular Village of Glenwood Council meeting was held at the Glenwood 
Community Hall on November 12, 2020 scheduled at 7:00 PM. 
 
In attendance: Deputy Mayor David Rolfson, Councillors Barton Lybbert, Gerry 
Carter and Rusty Clark. Mayor Albert Elias as absent 
 
Officials: CAO Carrie Kinahan was in attendance; Chief Financial Officer Hakon Skoien 
attended via phone for 27 minutes.  


 
 


 


 
Village Of Glenwood Council Meeting Minutes November 12, 2020 Initials: Page 1 of 3 


 


 
1. Called to Order 
 
 
2. Prayer 
 
3. Agenda Adoption 
2020.11.166 
 
 
4. Minutes Adoption 
2020.11.167 
 
 
 
2020.11.168 
 
 
 
5. Delegations: 
5.a RCMP  
Sergeant Bob Wright 
 
5.b Emergency 
Management - Janet 
Edwards  
 
6. Items for Discussion: 
6.a Tough Country Shed 
2020.11.169 
 
 
6.b By law #239-2020-
A Emergency 
Management Bylaw  
2020.11.170 
 
 
 
2020.11.171 
 
 
 
2020.11.172 
 
 
 
2020.11.173 
 
 


Deputy Mayor Rolfson called the November 12, 2020 Regular Council 
Meeting to order at 7:00 PM 
 
Councillor Lybbert 
 
 
Councillor Lybbert MOVED to adopt the agenda as presented. 


Carried 
 
 
Deputy Mayor Rolfson MOVED to adopt the minutes of the 
2020.10.22 Organizational Council Meeting as presented. 


Carried 
 
Councillor Lybbert MOVED to adopt the minutes of the 2020. 10.22 
Regular Council Meeting as presented. 


Carried 
 
 
No resolutions for this item. 
 
 
 
No resolutions for this item. 
 
 
 
 
Deputy Mayor Rolfson MOVED to instruct administration to inform 
Tough Country, approving the shed. 


Carried 
 
 
 
Councillor Lybbert MOVED to approve First Reading for Bylaw 
#239-2020-A (Emergency Management) as presented. 


Carried 
 
Councillor Carter MOVED to approve Second Reading for Bylaw 
#239-2020-A (Emergency Management) as presented. 


Carried 
 
Deputy Mayor Rolfson MOVED to consider Third & Final Reading 
for Bylaw #239-2020-A (Emergency Management) as presented. 


Carried 
 
Councillor Clark MOVED to approve Third Reading & Final Reading 
for Bylaw #239-2020-A (Emergency Management) as presented. 


Carried 
 
 







 


Village Of Glenwood Council Meeting Minutes November 12, 2020 Initials: Page 2 of 3 
 


6.c Community Hall 
Rental increase for 
COVID cleaning (Policy) 
2020.11.174 
 
 
 
6.d Bylaw #223-2020 
Off Road Vehicle (Draft) 
2020.11.175 
 
 
6.e Council & 
Administration 
Christmas Party 
2020.11.176 
 
CFO Hakon Skoien 
attended via Phone 
 
6.f 2021 Budget 
discussion  
2020.11.177 
 
 
 
7. & 8. Council & CAO 
Reports 
Mayor Elias 
 
Deputy Mayor Rolfson 
 
Councillor Carter 
 
Councillor Clark 
 
Councillor Lybbert 
 
CAO Report 
 
 
2020.11.178 
 
 
 
9. Financial Reports 
9.a 
2020.11.179 
 
 
9.b 
2020.11.180 
 
 
 
10. Correspondence 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 
 
 
Deputy Mayor Rolfson MOVED to approve the COVID Cleaning Policy 
at Community Hall.  


Carried 
 
 
 
Councillor Carter MOVED to look deeper into Bylaw #223-2020 and 
table to a later meeting. 
                                                                                                                     Carried 
 
 
 
Councillor Lybbert MOVED to cancel for this year due to COVID. 
                                                                                                                     Carried 
 
CFO Hakon Skoien joined the meeting via phone at 8:12 PM. 
 
 
 
Councillor Carter MOVED to accept as information and to table to 
next meeting.  
                                                                                                                     Carried 
 
 
 


• Absent 
 


• None 
 


• None 
 


• None 
 


• No Recreation activities planned. 
 


• CAO Report presented as outlined in the agenda 
 
 
Deputy Mayor Rolfson MOVED to accept the Councillor & CAO 
reports as information. 


Carried 
 


 
 
Councillor Lybbert MOVED to accept the Accounts Payable Report for 
November (20190948 - 20190976) as information. 


Carried 
 
Councillor Carter MOVED to accept the Budget VS Actual Operating & 
Capital reports as presented as information. 


Carried 
 


a) 2020 Alberta SW Board Minutes 10-07 
b) 2020-11 Bulletin Alberta SW 
c) M&R Ridge Utilities Intro v3 
d) Infrastructure Funding Letter 
e) M&R October 
f) M&R October 2, 2020 minutes 
g) M&R Into to RUL 
h) M&R Agenda, November 6, 2020  







 


Village Of Glenwood Council Meeting Minutes November 12, 2020 Initials: Page 3 of 3 
 


 
 
 
2020.11.181 
 
 
 
11. Closed Meeting 
2020.11.182 
 
 
 
 
2020.11.183 
 
 
 
2020.11.184 
 
 
2020.11.185 
 
 
 
2020.11.186 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2020.11.187 
 
 
 
2020.11.188 
 
 
 
Adjournment 
2020.11.189 


i) Ibr-ohs-enews-2020-10 
j) Ibr-ohs-enews-2020-11 


 
Councillor Lybbert MOVED to accept the correspondence as 
information. 


Carried 
 
 
Deputy Mayor Rolfson MOVED to close the meeting to the public at 
9:00 PM to discuss Land, Legal or Labour Matters as per Section 
24(b)(i) of the FOIP Act. 


Carried 
 
Deputy Mayor Rolfson MOVED to open the meeting to the public at 
9:31 PM. 


Carried 
 
Deputy Mayor Rolfson MOVED to extend the meeting past 9:30 PM.  


Carried 
 
Deputy Mayor Rolfson MOVED to closed the meeting to the public 
again at 9:33 PM.  


Carried 
 
Councillor Lybbert MOVED to open the meeting to the public at 9:45 
PM.  


Carried 
 
The Regular Council Meeting resumed at 9:48 PM allowing for the 
public to rejoin the meeting. 
 
 
Deputy Mayor Rolfson MOVED to instruct administration to purchase 
either a Ham or Turkey for each member of Council & each Employee. 


Carried 
 
Councillor Clark MOVED to instruct administration to pay each 
village staff member a $100.00 Christmas Bonus.  


Carried 
 
 
Councillor Clark MOVED to adjourn the meeting at 9:55 PM. 


Carried 
 
 


_____________________________________________ 
Meeting Chair 


 
_____________________________________________ 


Chief Administrative Officer 
  


 


























 1:44:27PM


VILLAGE OF GLENWOOD


2020-Dec-8Cheque Listing For Council


Page 1 of 2


Cheque #


Cheque


Date Vendor Name Invoice # Invoice Description


Invoice 


Amount


Cheque 


Amount


 20190977 2020-11-12 ALBERTA MUNICIPAL SERVICES CORPORATION PAYMENT  4,375.91


20-1036241 UTILITIES  4,375.91 


 20190978 2020-11-12 ALBERTA ONE CALL CORPORATION PAYMENT  18.90


IN 162987 LAND LOCATES  18.90 


 20190979 2020-11-12 AMSC INSURANCE SERVICES LTD PAYMENT  1,392.89


0172-40,871 2020 NOV.  BENEFITS  1,392.89 


 20190980 2020-11-12 BECK'S EXCAVATING & TRUCKING LTD PAYMENT  882.00


2868 REPAIR CUBSTOPS & APPROACH  882.00 


 20190981 2020-11-12 CAMPBELL, MARILEE PAYMENT  42.00


2020-OCT-31 ACTIVATE CELL PHONE  42.00 


 20190982 2020-11-12 CARTER, GERALD PAYMENT  71.98


2020 - OCTOBER COUNCIL TRAVEL  71.98 


 20190983 2020-11-12 CHIEF MOUNTAIN GAS CO-OP LTD PAYMENT  830.11


30240 LIBRARY FURNACE REPAIR  830.11 


 20190984 2020-11-12 DIGITAL CONNECTION INC. PAYMENT  167.16


284618 PHOTO COPIES  167.16 


 20190985 2020-11-12 ELEMENT MATERIALS TECH. CANADA INC. PAYMENT  109.01


20-1222850 LAGOON TESTING  109.01 


 20190986 2020-11-12 HACH SALES & SERVICE CANADA LTD. PAYMENT  337.16


234765 WT.PLANT SUPPLIES  337.16 


 20190987 2020-11-12 LYBBERT, CLINTON PAYMENT  100.00


C.H. REFUND C.H. DEPOSIT REFUND  100.00 


 20190988 2020-11-12 McGILL'S INDUSTRIAL SERVICES PAYMENT  8,052.45


9077 2020 FLUSH MAINT.  - WHOLE TOWN  8,052.45 


 20190989 2020-11-12 PINCHER CREEK CO-OP PAYMENT  81.52


00284101B OFFICE / SHOP SUPPLIES  14.91 


00284105B SHOP TOOLS  31.50 


00292122A ICE SHOP TOOLS  35.11 


 20190990 2020-11-12 ROLFSON, DAVID PAYMENT  90.88


2020. OCT COUNCIL TRAVEL  90.88 


 20190991 2020-11-12 TOP HOUSE ROOFING PAYMENT  630.00


1203 ROOF INSPECTIONS  630.00 


 20190992 2020-11-12 TWINPRO INDUSTRIAL CHEMICALS PAYMENT  531.39


34317 WTP CHEMICAL  531.39 


 20190993 2020-11-12 WELLS FARGO EQUIPMENT FIN CO PAYMENT  220.36


5012322102 11/29/2020 - 12/28/2020  220.36 


 20190994 2020-11-25 Alberta Queen's Printer PAYMENT  58.75


S093064 QUEEN PRINTER  58.75 


 20190995 2020-11-25 ALBERTA SOUTHWEST REGIONAL ALLIANCE LTD. PAYMENT  376.00


525 2020 MEMBERSHIP FEES  316.00 


540 2020 REGIONAL BUS. LICENCES  60.00 


 20190996 2020-11-25 ATB FINANCIAL MASTERCARD PAYMENT  2,510.99


202.10 SCADA SUPP.OFF., STAFF T, PHONE, TRAINING, POSTAGE 1,629.09 


2020.11 OFFICE, XPLOR DATA PHONE, TELUS  881.90 


 20190997 2020-11-25 BECK'S EXCAVATING & TRUCKING LTD PAYMENT  102,992.82


2863 MAIN AVE FROM 1-4ST BASE ROAD UPGRADE 102,992.82 


 20190998 2020-11-25 CARDSTON COUNTY PAYMENT  31,226.72


IVC000000019366 GRAVEL FOR MAIN AVE ROAD PROJECT 31,226.72 


 20190999 2020-11-25 CARTER, GERALD PAYMENT  71.98


2020.11.25 COUNCIL TRAVEL  71.98 







 1:44:27PM


VILLAGE OF GLENWOOD


2020-Dec-8Cheque Listing For Council


Page 2 of 2


Cheque #


Cheque


Date Vendor Name Invoice # Invoice Description


Invoice 


Amount


Cheque 


Amount


 20191000 2020-11-25 DIGITAL CONNECTION INC. PAYMENT  364.58


289979 COPIES  364.58 


 20191001 2020-11-25 EDWARDS, DARRELL PAYMENT  51.80


2020.11 CEMETERY  51.80 


 20191002 2020-11-25 KINAHAN, CARRIE PAYMENT  148.96


2020.11 OFFICE SUP, SHOP TOOLS, SK. RINK, COMM. HAL 148.96 


 20191003 2020-11-25 MICROAGE ALBERTA LTD. PAYMENT  65.63


18176 FIX GOOGLE SETTINGS  65.63 


 20191004 2020-11-25 MUNICIPAL INFORMATION SYSTEMS INC. PAYMENT  304.51


2021641 DECEMBER SUPPORT  304.51 


 20191005 2020-11-25 PUROLATOR PAYMENT  111.56


445972729 ELEMENTS SAMPLES  111.56 


 20191006 2020-11-25 RMA- RURAL MUNICIPALITIES OF ALBERTA PAYMENT  204.75


RMA00476 MEMEBERSHIP AUG. 1/2020 - JUL 31/2021 204.75 


 20191007 2020-11-25 WELLS FARGO EQUIPMENT FIN CO PAYMENT  232.75


5012712188 12/29/2020  - 01/28/2021  232.75 


 20191008 2020-11-30 HUNSPERGER, PERRY


 20191009 2020-11-30 EDWARDS, JANET


 20191010 2020-11-30 KINAHAN, CARRIE


 20191011 2020-11-30 CARTER, GERALD


 20191012 2020-11-30 LYBBERT, BART


 20191013 2020-11-30 ROLFSON, DAVID


 20191014 2020-11-30 CAMPBELL, ELIZA M


 20191015 2020-11-30 CLARK, RUSTY


*** End of Report ***


Total  165,979.29








 1:49:00PM


2020-Dec-8


2020 Operating & Capital BUDGET to ACTUAL


General 


Ledger


Description 2018 Actual 2019 Actual 2020 Budget 2020 YTD 


Actual


2020 Budget 


Remaining %


2020 Budget 


Remaining $


VILLAGE OF GLENWOOD Page 1 of 10


Tax Revenue


1-00-00-00-00-102 Taxes - Chinook Foundation (5,520.07) (5,847.32) (6,000.00) (5,829.06)  2.84 (170.94)


1-00-00-00-00-103 Taxes - Non-Residential (49,488.39) (52,143.99) (53,000.00) (49,550.53)  6.50 (3,449.47)


1-00-00-00-00-105 Taxes - Linear (12,961.37) (14,004.13) (13,900.00) (16,244.27) (16.86)  2,344.27 


1-00-00-00-00-108 Taxes - Residential (217,615.50) (227,298.55) (233,500.00) (228,319.34)  2.21 (5,180.66)


1-00-00-00-00-110 Taxes - M&E (21,706.20) (22,805.99) (23,300.00) (22,800.00)  2.14 (500.00)


1-00-00-00-00-130 Taxes - Policing  0.00  0.00 (5,585.00)  0.00  100.00 (5,585.00)


*        TOTAL Tax Revenue (307,291.53) (322,099.98) (335,285.00) (322,743.20) 3.74 (12,541.80)


General Government Revenue


1-00-00-00-00-590 Other Revenue from Own Sources (350.00) (1,221.00) (300.00) (1,030.00) (243.33)  730.00 


1-12-00-00-00-410 Photocopy,Fax, etc Revenue (266.55) (172.05) (180.00) (213.65) (18.69)  33.65 


1-12-00-00-00-433 Assessment Appeal Deposit (50.00) (50.00) (100.00) (50.00)  50.00 (50.00)


1-12-00-00-00-525 License - Business (160.00) (280.00) (240.00)  166.00  169.16 (406.00)


1-12-00-00-00-561 Xplornet (2,788.80) (2,970.46) (2,000.00) (2,766.60) (38.33)  766.60 


1-00-00-00-00-510 Taxes - Penalties & Costs (4,370.61) (1,893.08) (4,000.00) (3,969.49)  0.76 (30.51)


1-00-00-00-00-541 Franchise & Concession ATCO Revenue (3,322.30) (18,354.44) (9,000.00) (17,666.79) (96.29)  8,666.79 


1-00-00-00-00-550 Return on Investments (3,153.87) (5,804.40) (3,500.00) (2,982.13)  14.79 (517.87)


*        TOTAL General Gov't Revenue (14,462.13) (30,745.43) (19,320.00) (28,512.66) (47.58) 9,192.66


Operating Grant Revenue


1-00-00-00-00-748 Grant Misc (9,345.03) (1,500.00) (2,500.00) (86,319.00) (3,352.76)  83,819.00 


1-00-00-00-00-751 GRANTS - ACP INTERMUNICIPAL (17,354.25) (4,414.89) (1,000.00)  0.00  100.00 (1,000.00)


1-00-00-00-00-843 Grant - MSI Operational (34,832.00) (34,147.00) (34,000.00) (31,607.00)  7.03 (2,393.00)


*        TOTAL Operating Grant Revenue (61,531.28) (40,061.89) (37,500.00) (117,926.00) (214.47) 80,426.00







 1:49:00PM


2020-Dec-8


2020 Operating & Capital BUDGET to ACTUAL


General 


Ledger


Description 2018 Actual 2019 Actual 2020 Budget 2020 YTD 


Actual


2020 Budget 


Remaining %


2020 Budget 


Remaining $


VILLAGE OF GLENWOOD Page 2 of 10


Protective Services Revenue


1-00-00-00-00-990 Other Rev - NSF,  Fines, Lease (665.00) (35.00) (200.00) (22.00)  89.00 (178.00)


*        TOTAL Protective Services Rev (665.00) (35.00) (200.00) (22.00) 89.00 (178.00)


Transportation Service Revenue


1-30-00-00-00-410 Equipment Pool Revenue (400.00) (110.00) (200.00) (276.79) (38.39)  76.79 


1-32-00-00-00-591 Snow Removal Roads & Streets (80.00) (400.00) (100.00) (80.00)  20.00 (20.00)


*        TOTAL Trans Service Revenue (480.00) (510.00) (300.00) (356.79) (18.93) 56.79


Water Revenue


1-41-00-00-00-120 Water Connection Install  0.00 (5,000.00) (1,000.00) (9,000.00) (800.00)  8,000.00 


1-41-00-00-00-121 Water On/Off Fee (240.00) (270.00) (100.00) (240.00) (140.00)  140.00 


1-41-00-00-00-410 Sales - Water (105,061.11) (123,579.31) (110,200.00) (118,210.05) (7.26)  8,010.05 


1-41-00-00-00-411 Water - Bulk Sales (3,594.04) (3,578.42) (3,000.00) (5,659.00) (88.63)  2,659.00 


1-41-00-00-00-510 Water - Penalties & Costs (411.91) (222.93) (500.00) (359.10)  28.18 (140.90)


*        TOTAL Water Revenue (109,307.06) (132,650.66) (114,800.00) (133,468.15) (16.26) 18,668.15


Irrigation Revenue


1-40-00-00-00-410 Sales - Irrigation (9,522.50) (11,292.32) (10,200.00) (16,657.76) (63.31)  6,457.76 


*        TOTAL Irrigation Revenue (9,522.50) (11,292.32) (10,200.00) (16,657.76) (63.31) 6,457.76


Sewer Revenue


1-42-00-00-00-120 Sewer Connection Install  0.00 (2,000.00) (1,000.00) (7,000.00) (600.00)  6,000.00 


1-42-00-00-00-410 Sales - Sewer (26,831.66) (22,578.00) (24,000.00) (20,830.00)  13.20 (3,170.00)


1-42-00-00-00-411 Sales - Sewer RV Dumping Station (3,092.75) (3,126.35) (3,000.00) (3,449.50) (14.98)  449.50 


1-42-00-00-00-412 Sewer RV Campground Agreements (4,000.00) (4,000.00) (4,000.00) (2,125.00)  46.87 (1,875.00)


*        TOTAL Sewer Revenue (33,924.41) (31,704.35) (32,000.00) (33,404.50) (4.39) 1,404.50







 1:49:00PM


2020-Dec-8


2020 Operating & Capital BUDGET to ACTUAL


General 


Ledger


Description 2018 Actual 2019 Actual 2020 Budget 2020 YTD 


Actual


2020 Budget 


Remaining %


2020 Budget 


Remaining $


VILLAGE OF GLENWOOD Page 3 of 10


Waste Management  Revenue


1-43-00-00-00-410 Sales - Solid Waste (12,015.00) (12,992.00) (12,000.00) (20,894.67) (74.12)  8,894.67 


*        TOTAL Waste Mgmt Rev (12,015.00) (12,992.00) (12,000.00) (20,894.67) (74.12) 8,894.67


Cemetery Revenue


1-56-00-00-00-410 Cemetery - Plots & Fees (1,260.00) (1,130.00) (600.00) (265.00)  55.83 (335.00)


1-56-00-00-00-420 Cemetery - Donations (2,040.00) (1,250.00) (500.00) (2,797.74) (459.54)  2,297.74 


1-56-00-00-00-430 Cemetery County Contribution  0.00  0.00 (1,375.00)  0.00  100.00 (1,375.00)


*        TOTAL Cemetery Revenue (3,300.00) (2,380.00) (2,475.00) (3,062.74) (23.75) 587.74


Recreation & Culture Revenue


1-74-02-00-00-560 Rentals Community Hall (1,175.00) (1,988.75) (1,000.00) (500.00)  50.00 (500.00)


1-72-00-00-00-410 Sales & Services - Recreation (100.00) (399.50) (100.00)  0.00  100.00 (100.00)


1-74-03-00-00-474 Pioneer Parlour Revenue (42,867.91) (45,806.31) (47,600.00) (44,388.59)  6.74 (3,211.41)


1-74-04-00-00-410 Pioneer Days funds-fireworks donations (200.00) (2,950.00) (3,000.00) (533.45)  82.21 (2,466.55)


1-74-05-00-00-474 Post Office Rental Revenue  0.00 (1,400.00) (2,400.00) (2,200.00)  8.33 (200.00)


*        TOTAL Rec & Culture Rev (44,342.91) (52,544.56) (54,100.00) (47,622.04) 11.97 (6,477.96)


Planning & Development Revenue


1-12-00-00-00-490 Permit - Dev/Compliance (1,350.00)  415.00 (200.00) (5,755.00) (2,777.50)  5,555.00 


1-95-00-00-00-763 Transfers From Reserves - Operating  0.00  0.00 (3,000.00)  0.00  100.00 (3,000.00)


*        TOTAL Planning & Development R (1,350.00) 415.00 (3,200.00) (5,755.00) (79.84) 2,555.00


**       TOTAL Revenue (598,191.82) (636,601.19) (621,380.00) (730,425.51) (17.55) 109,045.51







 1:49:00PM


2020-Dec-8


2020 Operating & Capital BUDGET to ACTUAL


General 


Ledger


Description 2018 Actual 2019 Actual 2020 Budget 2020 YTD 


Actual


2020 Budget 


Remaining %


2020 Budget 


Remaining $


VILLAGE OF GLENWOOD Page 4 of 10


Council Expenses


2-11-00-00-00-153 Council Honorariums  10,050.00  10,700.00  11,000.00  5,950.00  45.90  5,050.00 


2-11-00-00-00-213 Council Travel  6,897.07  3,826.16  6,000.00  2,049.25  65.84  3,950.75 


2-11-00-00-00-520 Council Misc  3,772.50  2,322.89  3,500.00  523.69  85.03  2,976.31 


*        TOTAL Council Expenses 20,719.57 16,849.05 20,500.00 8,522.94 58.42 11,977.06


Administration Expenses


2-12-00-00-00-110 Salaries & Wages Admin  117,586.80  84,671.54  89,100.00  77,660.63  12.83  11,439.37 


2-12-00-00-00-113 Travel & Training - CAO  3,838.92  2,895.42  4,000.00  1,143.78  71.40  2,856.22 


2-12-00-00-00-130 Employer Source Deductions Admin  4,596.92  6,119.31  6,200.00  5,479.08  11.62  720.92 


2-12-00-00-00-131 Employer Benefit Deductions Admin  14,869.79  15,592.87  13,200.00  15,348.18 (16.27) (2,148.18)


2-12-00-00-00-142 Workers Compensation Admin  2,063.23  2,551.22  2,500.00  2,157.04  13.71  342.96 


2-12-00-00-00-150 Election & Census  409.03  0.00  0.00  329.50  0.00 (329.50)


2-12-00-00-00-210 Travel & Training - ADMIN  1,823.11  1,366.96  5,000.00  15.00  99.70  4,985.00 


2-12-00-00-00-215 Telephone Land Line Admin  1,003.01  1,044.19  1,500.00  874.99  41.66  625.01 


2-12-00-00-00-216 Fax Land Line Admin  779.87  891.36  1,000.00  755.22  24.47  244.78 


2-12-00-00-00-220 Advert, Printing, Memberships Admin  5,927.09  5,863.37  6,600.00  6,754.44 (2.34) (154.44)


2-12-00-00-00-230 Professional & Consulting Admin  33,559.89  34,959.05  33,300.00  24,212.62  27.28  9,087.38 


2-12-00-00-00-235 Postage & Freight Admin  2,490.83  2,056.94  2,500.00  1,773.66  29.05  726.34 


2-12-00-00-00-270 Misc Expense Admin  200.59  1,510.48  600.00  1,292.53 (115.42) (692.53)


2-12-00-00-00-274 Insurance Admin  17,333.80  13,446.10  13,800.00  14,241.85 (3.20) (441.85)


2-12-00-00-00-280 Reg Fees Land Titles  236.00  90.00  200.00  65.00  67.50  135.00 


2-12-00-00-00-290 Office Bldg Maintenance Admin  729.03  505.83  800.00  514.53  35.68  285.47 


2-12-00-00-00-300 Assessor Fees Admin  7,407.51  7,927.50  8,200.00  7,910.00  3.53  290.00 


2-12-00-00-00-510 Office Expense Admin  2,077.73  4,758.90  2,750.00  2,132.79  22.44  617.21 


2-12-00-00-00-520 Web Hosting Admin  1,250.00  1,250.00  1,300.00  1,415.71 (8.90) (115.71)


2-12-00-00-00-540 Administration Utilities Power  2,530.90  2,685.91  2,750.00  2,448.71  10.95  301.29 


2-12-00-00-00-541 Administration Utilities Gas  1,280.00  1,413.95  1,500.00  1,241.68  17.22  258.32 


2-12-00-00-00-810 Bank Charges Admin  2,677.87  2,729.48  2,750.00  1,610.24  41.44  1,139.76 


2-12-00-00-00-999 Adm - Amortization  219,863.43  178,644.74  224,400.00  0.00  100.00  224,400.00 


*        TOTAL Administration Expenses 444,535.35 372,975.12 423,950.00 169,377.18 60.05 254,572.82







 1:49:00PM


2020-Dec-8


2020 Operating & Capital BUDGET to ACTUAL


General 


Ledger


Description 2018 Actual 2019 Actual 2020 Budget 2020 YTD 


Actual


2020 Budget 


Remaining %


2020 Budget 


Remaining $


VILLAGE OF GLENWOOD Page 5 of 10


Protective Services Expenses


2-23-00-00-00-110 Fire & Emergency Management wages  497.74  250.00  1,000.00  150.00  85.00  850.00 


2-23-00-00-00-130 Employer source deduction Fire  0.87  0.00  50.00  0.00  100.00  50.00 


2-23-00-00-00-270 Fire Misc  2,332.54  361.63  2,000.00  507.02  74.64  1,492.98 


2-23-00-00-00-510 Fire Goods & Supplies  95.41  0.00  50.00  0.00  100.00  50.00 


2-23-00-00-00-540 Fire Utilities Power  1,644.37  2,092.38  1,950.00  1,947.90  0.10  2.10 


2-23-00-00-00-541 Fire Utilities Gas  1,906.33  2,404.72  1,900.00  2,145.26 (12.90) (245.26)


2-23-00-00-00-750 Fire Requisition  6,506.64  6,104.64  11,300.00  6,125.70  45.79  5,174.30 


2-23-00-00-00-760 Fire Dispatch Services  836.61  1,150.24  1,200.00  888.75  25.93  311.25 


2-23-00-00-00-770 Victim Services  600.00  600.00  500.00  0.00  100.00  500.00 


*        TOTAL Protective Services Exp 14,420.51 12,963.61 19,950.00 11,764.63 41.03 8,185.37


Shop Expenses


2-30-00-00-00-110 Salaries & Wages Equip Pool  3,120.67  3,101.60  2,700.00  2,904.75 (7.58) (204.75)


2-30-00-00-00-130 Employer Source Deductions Equip Pool  187.30  197.70  200.00  204.81 (2.40) (4.81)


2-30-00-00-00-131 Employer Benefit Deductions Equip Pool  156.02  1,101.66  200.00  978.45 (389.22) (778.45)


2-31-00-00-00-110 Village Maintenance Wages  15,716.39  15,508.12  13,700.00  14,523.44 (6.01) (823.44)


2-31-00-00-00-130 Employer Source Deductions V-Main  936.58  988.33  900.00  1,024.23 (13.80) (124.23)


2-31-00-00-00-131 Employer Benefits Vlg Maint  780.46  970.94  1,000.00  650.24  34.97  349.76 


2-31-00-00-00-250 Vlg Maint Contracted Services  2,075.00  228.64  2,000.00  150.00  92.50  1,850.00 


2-31-00-00-00-510 Vlg Maint Tools, Hardware, Op  1,230.39  993.12  2,000.00  853.14  57.34  1,146.86 


2-31-00-00-00-524 Vlg Maint Equip Supplies  2,040.54  2,298.06  2,000.00  287.12  85.64  1,712.88 


2-31-00-00-00-526 Vlg Maint Equip Supply Tractor  987.73  920.01  800.00  664.62  16.92  135.38 


2-31-00-00-00-527 Vlg Maint Fuel  4,399.34  2,547.96  3,100.00  931.71  69.94  2,168.29 


2-31-00-00-00-550 Safety Gear  341.45  151.32  500.00  333.57  33.28  166.43 


2-32-00-00-00-215 Telephone Shop  778.44  589.30  900.00  755.24  16.08  144.76 


2-32-00-00-00-217 Cell Phone Foreman  907.97  1,292.00  900.00  899.25  0.08  0.75 


*        TOTAL Shop Expenses 33,658.28 30,888.76 30,900.00 25,160.57 18.57 5,739.43







 1:49:00PM


2020-Dec-8


2020 Operating & Capital BUDGET to ACTUAL


General 


Ledger


Description 2018 Actual 2019 Actual 2020 Budget 2020 YTD 


Actual


2020 Budget 


Remaining %


2020 Budget 


Remaining $


VILLAGE OF GLENWOOD Page 6 of 10


Road & Street Expenses


2-32-00-00-00-110 Salaries & Wages Streets & Roads  16,531.47  17,839.28  17,200.00  17,305.69 (0.61) (105.69)


2-32-00-00-00-130 Employer Source Deduct Streets & Roads  1,017.39  1,041.20  1,100.00  1,198.92 (8.99) (98.92)


2-32-00-00-00-131 Employer Benefit Deduct Streets & Roads  820.13  970.94  1,200.00  650.24  45.81  549.76 


2-32-00-00-00-250 Streets & Roads Contracted Services  7,535.84  1,177.00  2,000.00  2,390.00 (19.50) (390.00)


2-32-00-00-00-260 Streets & Roads Goods & Servcies  0.00  482.62  1,000.00  934.43  6.55  65.57 


2-32-00-00-00-530 Streets & Roads Maint Materials  844.99  3,001.28  1,000.00  0.00  100.00  1,000.00 


2-32-00-00-00-540 Streetlights  10,559.86  12,329.42  12,000.00  11,431.03  4.74  568.97 


*        TOTAL Road & Street Expenses 37,309.68 36,841.74 35,500.00 33,910.31 4.48 1,589.69


Irrigation Expenses


2-40-00-00-00-110 Salaries & Wages Irrigation  7,729.82  8,534.35  6,900.00  8,365.66 (21.24) (1,465.66)


2-40-00-00-00-250 Irrg System Contracted Services  0.00  0.00  500.00  700.00 (40.00) (200.00)


2-40-00-00-00-252 Irrg System Maint  329.97  973.75  750.00  312.16  58.37  437.84 


2-40-00-00-00-540 Irrg System Utilities Power  3,248.23  2,598.47  3,600.00  3,244.85  9.86  355.15 


*        TOTAL Irrigation Expenses 11,308.02 12,106.57 11,750.00 12,622.67 (7.43) (872.67)


Water Expenses


2-41-00-00-00-110 Salaries & Wages Water  22,803.75  21,831.84  29,500.00  19,675.82  33.30  9,824.18 


2-41-00-00-00-130 Employer Source Deductions Water  1,730.48  1,763.93  2,600.00  1,823.36  29.87  776.64 


2-41-00-00-00-131 Employer Benefit Deductions Water  1,092.62  1,846.51  2,300.00  1,243.05  45.95  1,056.95 


2-41-00-00-00-210 Water - Seminars & Travel  1,823.34  3,553.10  3,000.00  2,030.87  32.30  969.13 


2-41-00-00-00-215 Telephone Water Plant  1,078.35  1,191.36  1,100.00  755.22  31.34  344.78 


2-41-00-00-00-250 Water Supply Contracted Services  7,983.88  12,015.10  11,000.00  16,095.02 (46.31) (5,095.02)


2-41-00-00-00-252 Water Supply Maint  1,968.90  2,451.60  7,600.00  3,785.59  50.18  3,814.41 


2-41-00-00-00-270 Water Supply Misc  22,947.95  31.14  1,500.00  0.00  100.00  1,500.00 


2-41-00-00-00-510 Water Supply Goods & Service  6,196.25  4,464.17  6,500.00  6,721.78 (3.41) (221.78)


2-41-00-00-00-540 Water Supply Utilities Power  10,156.53  12,076.98  10,700.00  11,275.81 (5.38) (575.81)


2-41-00-00-00-541 Water Supply Utilities Gas  3,428.59  3,545.23  3,800.00  3,603.61  5.16  196.39 


2-41-00-00-00-905 Water Billing Discount  3,489.50  3,655.62  3,500.00  3,902.56 (11.50) (402.56)


*        TOTAL Water Expenses 84,700.14 68,426.58 83,100.00 70,912.69 14.67 12,187.31







 1:49:00PM


2020-Dec-8


2020 Operating & Capital BUDGET to ACTUAL


General 


Ledger


Description 2018 Actual 2019 Actual 2020 Budget 2020 YTD 


Actual


2020 Budget 


Remaining %


2020 Budget 


Remaining $


VILLAGE OF GLENWOOD Page 7 of 10


Sewer Expenses


2-42-00-00-00-110 Salaries & Wages Sewer  3,020.67  3,101.60  2,700.00  2,904.75 (7.58) (204.75)


2-42-00-00-00-130 Employer Source Deductions Sewer  187.30  197.70  200.00  204.81 (2.40) (4.81)


2-42-00-00-00-131 Employer Benefit Deductions Sewer  156.02  276.80  200.00  207.19 (3.59) (7.19)


2-42-00-00-00-250 Sewer Contracted Services  19,819.86  2,481.70  5,250.00  10,375.80 (97.63) (5,125.80)


2-42-00-00-00-510 Sewer Goods & Services  0.00  0.00  250.00  0.00  100.00  250.00 


2-42-00-00-00-905 Sewer Billing Discount  0.00  0.00  250.00  0.00  100.00  250.00 


*        TOTAL Sewer Expenses 23,183.85 6,057.80 8,850.00 13,692.55 (54.72) (4,842.55)


Waste Management Expenses


2-43-00-00-00-250 Solid Waste Contracted Services  0.00  0.00  250.00  6,519.50 (2,507.80) (6,269.50)


2-43-00-00-00-510 Solid Waste Goods & Services  50.48  0.00  250.00  0.00  100.00  250.00 


2-43-00-00-00-750 Solid Waste Requisition - CMRSWA  6,747.37  7,792.56  7,100.00  8,187.56 (15.31) (1,087.56)


2-43-00-00-00-752 Requisition - County Transfer Station  0.00  3,126.80  3,300.00  4,050.48 (22.74) (750.48)


*        TOTAL Waste Mgmt Expenses 6,797.85 10,919.36 10,900.00 18,757.54 (72.09) (7,857.54)


Cemetery Expenses


2-56-00-00-00-110 Salaries & Wages Cemetery  1,688.45  3,346.52  2,100.00  5,461.07 (160.05) (3,361.07)


2-56-00-00-00-510 Cemetery Goods & Services  142.83  200.00  3,250.00  1,909.32  41.25  1,340.68 


2-56-00-00-00-540 Cemetery Utilities Power  947.99  1,006.25  1,100.00  927.58  15.67  172.42 


2-56-00-00-00-620 Cemetery Transfer to Reserves  0.00  0.00  500.00  130.65  73.87  369.35 


*        TOTAL Cemetery Expenses 2,779.27 4,552.77 6,950.00 8,428.62 (21.28) (1,478.62)


Planning & Development Expense


2-76-00-00-00-250 Development Contracted Services  0.00  0.00  500.00  0.00  100.00  500.00 


2-76-00-00-00-251 Planning - GIS  1,659.00  1,681.12  1,730.00  7,115.10 (311.27) (5,385.10)


2-76-00-00-00-252 ORRSC Requisition  3,288.28  3,863.00  5,200.00  0.00  100.00  5,200.00 


*        TOTAL Planning & Dev Expenses 4,947.28 5,544.12 7,430.00 7,115.10 4.24 314.90







 1:49:00PM


2020-Dec-8


2020 Operating & Capital BUDGET to ACTUAL


General 


Ledger


Description 2018 Actual 2019 Actual 2020 Budget 2020 YTD 


Actual


2020 Budget 


Remaining %


2020 Budget 


Remaining $


VILLAGE OF GLENWOOD Page 8 of 10


Parks & Recreation Expenses


2-62-00-00-00-201 Community Service Misc  0.00  0.00  500.00  19.05  96.19  480.95 


2-74-04-00-00-510 Pioneer Days Fireworks  3,000.00  3,150.00  3,000.00  0.00  100.00  3,000.00 


2-72-00-00-00-110 Salaries & Wages Parks & Rec  4,396.15  5,978.61  2,000.00  6,934.58 (246.72) (4,934.58)


2-72-00-00-00-725 Recreation Expenses (Vlg USE ONLY)  1,355.31  1,142.36  6,150.00  31.58  99.48  6,118.42 


2-72-00-00-00-540 Recreation Utilities Power  951.94  1,064.68  1,000.00  985.48  1.45  14.52 


2-72-00-00-00-541 Recreation Utilities Gas  730.00  855.88  800.00  808.61 (1.07) (8.61)


*        TOTAL Parks & Rec Expenses 10,433.40 12,191.53 13,450.00 8,779.30 34.73 4,670.70


Library Expenses


2-74-01-00-00-250 Library Contracted Services  968.38  886.57  1,000.00  2,071.48 (107.14) (1,071.48)


2-74-01-00-00-510 Library Goods and Services  0.00  10.45  500.00  75.13  84.97  424.87 


2-74-01-00-00-750 Library Society Operating Support  18,000.00  15,000.00  15,300.00  15,000.00  1.96  300.00 


2-74-01-00-00-771 Requisition Chinook Arch Library  2,480.60  2,531.16  2,500.00  2,581.72 (3.26) (81.72)


*        TOTAL Library Expenses 21,448.98 18,428.18 19,300.00 19,728.33 (2.22) (428.33)


Community Hall Expenses


2-74-02-00-00-110 Salaries and Wages Community Hall  2,900.00  1,275.00  2,700.00  350.00  87.03  2,350.00 


2-74-02-00-00-250 Community Hall Contracted Service  488.95  315.00  500.00  150.00  70.00  350.00 


2-74-02-00-00-510 Community Hall Goods & Service  954.03  1,601.89  1,000.00  1,412.34 (41.23) (412.34)


2-74-02-00-00-540 Community Hall Utilities Power  1,920.75  2,108.79  1,500.00  2,053.60 (36.90) (553.60)


2-74-02-00-00-541 Community Hall Utilities Gas  1,240.96  1,456.03  1,125.00  1,177.75 (4.68) (52.75)


*        TOTAL Community Hall Expenses 7,504.69 6,756.71 6,825.00 5,143.69 24.63 1,681.31


Pioneer Parlour Expenses


2-74-03-00-00-110 Salaries & Wages Pioneer Parlour  18,973.75  22,604.66  18,500.00  19,639.26 (6.15) (1,139.26)


2-74-03-00-00-130 Employer Source Deductions PP  694.03  1,014.14  500.00  824.45 (64.89) (324.45)


2-74-03-00-00-250 Pioneer Parlour Contracted Services  75.94  1,432.00  1,500.00  332.00  77.86  1,168.00 


2-74-03-00-00-474 Pioneer Parlour Expenses (Bldg)  939.03  2,786.58  1,000.00  1,199.16 (19.91) (199.16)


2-74-03-00-00-510 Pioneer Parlour Goods & Services  17,203.67  21,312.83  19,900.00  19,877.91  0.11  22.09 


2-74-03-00-00-540 Pioneer Parlour Utilities Power  1,598.36  1,702.28  1,700.00  1,539.06  9.46  160.94 


2-74-03-00-00-541 Pioneer Parlour Utilities Gas  834.76  1,019.48  1,100.00  930.99  15.36  169.01 


2-74-03-00-00-810 Pioneer Parlour Merchant Fees  0.00  0.00  0.00  3,671.72  0.00 (3,671.72)


*        TOTAL Pioneer Parlour Expenses 40,319.54 51,871.97 44,200.00 48,014.55 (8.63) (3,814.55)







 1:49:00PM


2020-Dec-8


2020 Operating & Capital BUDGET to ACTUAL


General 


Ledger


Description 2018 Actual 2019 Actual 2020 Budget 2020 YTD 


Actual


2020 Budget 


Remaining %


2020 Budget 


Remaining $


VILLAGE OF GLENWOOD Page 9 of 10


Post Office Expenses


2-74-05-00-00-540 Post Office Utilities Power  0.00  0.00  500.00  0.00  100.00  500.00 


2-74-05-00-00-541 Post Office Utilities Gas  0.00  0.00  375.00  0.00  100.00  375.00 


*        TOTAL Post Office Exp 0.00 0.00 875.00 0.00 100.00 875.00


Community Support Requisitions


2-26-00-00-00-100 Requisition - Policing  0.00  0.00  5,585.00  0.00  100.00  5,585.00 


2-62-00-00-00-206 Com Services: Communities in Bloom  2,925.00  1,788.75  2,000.00  119.31  94.03  1,880.69 


2-62-00-00-00-208 Spring Glen Park Req/Exp/Donate  1,500.00  1,428.57  1,500.00  1,500.00  0.00  0.00 


2-62-00-00-00-209 Com Services: Glenwood Seniors Req  500.00  500.00  500.00  500.00  0.00  0.00 


2-62-00-00-00-210 Com Services: FCSS Requisition  2,446.00  2,446.00  2,446.00  2,446.00  0.00  0.00 


2-62-00-00-00-750 Com Services: Farm Safety Ctr Donation  0.00  300.00  300.00  300.00  0.00  0.00 


2-72-00-00-00-750 Recreation Brd Expenses (Vlg DON'T USE )  2,818.85  801.01  1,500.00  0.00  100.00  1,500.00 


2-98-00-00-00-102 Req Chinook Foundation  5,520.09  5,870.52  6,000.00  5,828.54  2.85  171.46 


2-98-00-00-00-108 Req United Irrigation Dist  4,203.18  4,553.30  4,400.00  4,689.90 (6.58) (289.90)


2-98-00-00-00-115 Req School Foundation  68,249.59  71,341.78  73,100.00  47,821.63  34.58  25,278.37 


2-98-00-00-00-116 DESIGNATED INDUSTRIAL PROPERTY 


(DIP)


 20.37  47.17  47.00  0.00  100.00  47.00 


2-12-00-00-00-763 General Reserves transfer from Operating  0.00  0.00  3,972.00  0.00  100.00  3,972.00 


*        TOTAL Community Support Requis 88,183.08 89,077.10 101,350.00 63,205.38 37.64 38,144.62


**       TOTAL Expenses 852,249.49 756,450.97 845,780.00 525,136.05 37.91 320,643.95


***      TOTAL Revenues Over Expenses 254,057.67 119,849.78 224,400.00 (205,289.46) 191.48 429,689.46







 1:49:00PM


2020-Dec-8


2020 Operating & Capital BUDGET to ACTUAL


General 


Ledger


Description 2018 Actual 2019 Actual 2020 Budget 2020 YTD 


Actual


2020 Budget 


Remaining %


2020 Budget 


Remaining $


VILLAGE OF GLENWOOD Page 10 of 10


Capital Grants Revenue


1-00-00-00-00-842 Grant - MSI Capital (88,225.34) (91,802.29) (211,850.00) (140,862.00)  33.50 (70,988.00)


1-00-00-00-00-846 Grants - FGTF/NDCC (90,569.74)  0.00 (130,000.00) (100,000.00)  23.07 (30,000.00)


*        TOTAL Cap Grants Rev (178,795.08) (91,802.29) (341,850.00) (240,862.00) 29.54 (100,988.00)


**       TOTAL CAPITAL REVENUE (178,795.08) (91,802.29) (341,850.00) (240,862.00) 29.54 (100,988.00)


Capital Expenses


2-12-00-00-00-762 Admin - Transfer to Capital  0.00  0.00  10,750.00  10,739.20  0.10  10.80 


2-23-00-00-00-762 Protective Serv-Transfer to Capital  0.00  0.00  4,000.00  0.00  100.00  4,000.00 


2-32-00-00-00-762 Strts & Rds - Transfer to Capital  0.00  0.00  181,400.00  216,508.13 (19.35) (35,108.13)


2-40-00-00-00-762 Irrigation - Transfer to Capital  0.00  0.00  5,000.00  3,500.95  29.98  1,499.05 


2-41-00-00-00-762 Water - Transfer to Capital  0.00  0.00  123,700.00  0.00  100.00  123,700.00 


2-42-00-00-00-762 Sewer - Transfer to Capital  0.00  0.00  12,000.00  0.00  100.00  12,000.00 


2-74-02-00-00-762 Community Hall - Transfer to Capital  0.00  0.00  5,000.00  0.00  100.00  5,000.00 


*        TOTAL Capital Expenses 0.00 0.00 341,850.00 230,748.28 32.50 111,101.72


**       TOTAL CAPITAL EXPENSES 0.00 0.00 341,850.00 230,748.28 32.50 111,101.72


***      Revenues Over Expense/Capital (178,795.08) (91,802.29) 0.00 (10,113.72) 0.00 10,113.72


*** End of Report ***








12:48:18PM


VILLAGE OF GLENWOOD


2020-Dec-1Accounts Payable Bank Reconciliation


Page 1 of 1


October Balance Shown on Bank Statement  625,806.21 


Add   Outstanding Deposits


Deposit Description AmountDeposit DateBatch #


BANK DEPOSIT  8861 2020-10-29  506.40 


DIRECT DEPOSIT  8879 2020-10-30  50.00 


Sub Total


 556.40 


 626,362.61 


Total Deposits Outstanding  556.40 


Less   Outstanding Cheques


Payee AmountCheque DateCheque #


SCOUT, MS SANDRA M  20190702 2020-04-23  50.00 


GIBB, CONNIE  20190875 2020-08-18  320.00 


CANADA REVENUE AGENCY  20190891 2020-09-03  427.34 


ROLFSON, DAVID  20190927 2020-09-30  90.86 


ATB FINANCIAL MASTERCARD  20190949 2020-10-07  1,216.66 


 LYBBERT, TINA  20190954 2020-10-07  62.74 


McCollister, Brynlee  20190966 2020-10-22  182.00 


 2,349.60 (2,349.60)Total Outstanding Cheques


And Adjustments


*** End of Report ***


Your Bank Balance Should Be


Your Reconciled Bank Balance Is


Difference


 624,013.01 


 0.00 


 624,013.01 








 1:17:01PM


VILLAGE OF GLENWOOD


2020-Dec-1Accounts Payable Bank Reconciliation


Page 1 of 1


November Balance Shown on Bank Statement  595,362.72 


Add   Outstanding Deposits


Deposit Description AmountDeposit DateBatch #


BANK DEPOSIT  8938 2020-11-30  8,327.08 


DEBIT DEPOSIT  8938 2020-11-30  564.00 


Sub Total


 8,891.08 


 604,253.80 


Total Deposits Outstanding  8,891.08 


Less   Outstanding Cheques


Payee AmountCheque DateCheque #


SCOUT, MS SANDRA M  20190702 2020-04-23  50.00 


GIBB, CONNIE  20190875 2020-08-18  320.00 


CANADA REVENUE AGENCY  20190891 2020-09-03  427.34 


McCollister, Brynlee  20190966 2020-10-22  182.00 


TOP HOUSE ROOFING  20190991 2020-11-12  630.00 


Alberta Queen's Printer  20190994 2020-11-25  58.75 


ALBERTA SOUTHWEST REGIONAL ALLIANCE LTD. 20190995 2020-11-25  376.00 


CARDSTON COUNTY  20190998 2020-11-25  31,226.72 


DIGITAL CONNECTION INC.  20191000 2020-11-25  364.58 


KINAHAN, CARRIE  20191002 2020-11-25  148.96 


MICROAGE ALBERTA LTD.  20191003 2020-11-25  65.63 


MUNICIPAL INFORMATION SYSTEMS INC.  20191004 2020-11-25  304.51 


PUROLATOR  20191005 2020-11-25  111.56 


RMA- RURAL MUNICIPALITIES OF ALBERTA  20191006 2020-11-25  204.75 


WELLS FARGO EQUIPMENT FIN CO  20191007 2020-11-25  232.75 


 34,703.55 (34,703.55)Total Outstanding Cheques


And Adjustments


*** End of Report ***


Your Bank Balance Should Be


Your Reconciled Bank Balance Is


Difference


 569,550.25 


 0.00 


 569,550.25 





